
 

 

 

November 21st, 2016 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 
Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
D/b/a Camden County Developmental Disability Resources 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 
Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on November 21st, 2016, 4:00 PM 

 
This Board Meeting will be held at: 

 
255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive 

 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 
Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for October 17th, 2016 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 
• CLC Monthly Reports 
• LAI Monthly Reports 
• Support Coordination Report 
• CARF Reports 
• Agency Economic Report 
• September 2016 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolutions 2016-41, 2016-42, 2016-43, 2016-44, 2016-45, 2016-46, & 2017-47 

 
Public Comment 

 
Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 

 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public 
during the portion of the Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall 
be limited to no more than 3 minutes per person to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It 
is the policy of the Board that the Board shall not respond to public comment at the Board 
meeting.” 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments 
need not be related to specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not 
receive comments related to specific client matters and/or personnel grievances, which are 
addressed separately per Board policies and procedures.” 

 

 

 

 

 



Speakers/Guests 

• Robert Stiles, CEO, Central Ozarks Medical Center 

Discussion and Conclusion of Resolution: 

1. Resolution 2016-46:  Approval of MOU - Ozarks Rural Health Network 

Monthly Reports 
 

• Arc of the Lake 
• Lake of the Ozarks Developmental Center (LODC) 
• Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 
• Lake Area Industries (LAI) 

Old Business for Discussion 

• NONE 
 
New Business for Discussion 
 

• NONE 
 
October Support Coordination Report 
 
October CARF Reports 
 
October Agency Economic Report 
 
September 2016 Credit Card Statement 
 
Discussion and Conclusion of Resolutions: 

1. Resolution 2016-41:  Amended Compliance Manager Job Description 
2. Resolution 2016-42:  Amended Accounting Manager Job Description 
3. Resolution 2016-43:  Amended Director of Services and Supports Job Description 
4. Resolution 2016-44:  Approval of Amended Policy #10 
5. Resolution 2016-45:  Approval of Amended Policy #29 
6. Resolution 2016-47:  New Policy 42 - Electronic Signatures 

 
Closed Session Pursuant to RSMo 610.021, Subsections (8) & (14) 
 
Board Education Session – CCDDR Budgets Update 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
The news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting: 
Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108, Osage Beach, MO  65065 
Office:  573-693-1511          Fax:  573-693-1515        Email:  director@ccddr.org 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 17th, 2016  
Open Session Minutes 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Open Session Minutes of October 17th, 2016 

 
Members Present Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 

Lisa Jackson, Bob Robinson, Max Fisher, Lisa Jackson (arrived at 4:50 PM) 
 

Members Absent Angela Sellers, Brian Willey, Jim Powell 
 
Others Present Ed Thomas, Executive Director 
 
Guests                        Susan Daniels, Lisa Berkstresser, (CLC) 

Tiffany Maasen, Lilly Smith, Marvin Johnson (LAI) 
Don, Doris Barber and daughter 

   Edmond Thomas, Myrna Blaine, Rachel Baskerville, Gigi Maha, 
   Linda Simms, Jeanna Cupp, Marcie Vansyoc, Linda Gifford (CCDDR) 
 
The board chair asked those in attendance to “respect the meeting order of board business.” 
attendance.  

 
Approval of Agenda  
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Max Fisher, to approve the agenda as presented. 
 

AYE:    Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 
  Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 
 

    NO:       None 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Minutes for September 19th, 2016 
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Paul DiBello, to approve the September 19th minutes as 
presented. 
 
         AYE:    Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 

  Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 
 

            NO:    None 
 
                   ABSTAIN:  Max Fisher because he was not  
      present at the September 19th, 2016 board meeting. 

 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 
   

• CLC Monthly Reports 
• LAI Monthly Reports 
• Support Coordination Report 
• CARF Report 
• Agency Economic Report 
• August 2016 Credit Card Statement 



 
Speakers/Guests 
 
Don Barber, parent of LAI employee, shared with all present that he and his wife did not wish their 
daughter to use OATS as it is a public transportation provider.  Dr. Barber transports his daughter to 
LAI.  Dr. Barber‘s second concern is in regards to LAI.  His daughter is as “happy as a lark” at LAI, 
loves the other employees and supervisors and it would be a dark spot in her life if she could not work 
at LAI.  CCDDR provides choices for LAI employees and he urges and pleads that LAI be one of the 
choices for employment.  If people are forced to work in the community, his daughter’s choice is the 
comfort and happiness that she gets at LAI.  Dr. Barber asks that LAI is always kept as a place of 
employment. 
 
Monthly Reports 
 
Arc of the Lake 
Myrna Blaine 
 
There is nothing new to offer on behalf of the ARC.  It is time to appoint the 2017 officers.  ARC 
meetings are held at 6pm at the Miller County office for Special Services the 1st Tuesday in 
November. 
 
Lake Ozarks Developmental Center (LODC) 
 
No one present from LODC 
 
Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 
Susan Daniels   
 
CLC’s attendance is now 26 children.  CLC’s parent/teachers conference as well as their annual trunk 
or treat will be next week.  “Girl and a Gun” raffle tickets are on sale with all monies going to CLC.  
There are 23 tickets remaining for the 3rd Celebration cruise held on Sunday in December. 
 
Lake Area Industries (LAI) 
Tiffany Maasen 
 
Gifted Goods and Garments will be closing Friday of this week.  It is a struggle to break even; 
employees are transitioning out due to WIOA changes leaving not enough employees to operate the 
store. Someone will be coming to make an offer on the racks and displays at the thrift store. The 
wood shop is also closing, leaving secure document, foam shredding, the garden area, and contract 
packaging.  Wages decreased by $20,000 by eliminating sick and vacation pay.  As a result of 
checking with other workshops, changes have been made in health, life, vision and dental benefits for 
staff as well as their families.  LAI budget was discussed and summed up as to how the numbers were 
arrived at. Professional services include all of LAI workmen’s comp which is billed monthly to LAI.  
Shredding area can be profitable and can employ all skill sets of employees. Gifted Gardens plans on 
growing more plants next year.  The foam area is doing well.  DNR is assisting LAI with upcoming 
DNR grants – DNR believes it will take 3 to 4 years to shred the foam that is in the lake area. Needed 
repairs at LAI were discussed.  LAI is waiting on a bids.  Laclede Electric and LAI are working 
together to get electrical upgrades for the facility. Laclede and Catalyst gave a bid of $15,000 for 
needed electrical upgrades, with Laclede donating time and LAI funding the remainder of the 



electrical upgrades. Patching of asphalt as well as a spare auger for the foam area is needed as well as 
other repairs. A letter of complaint was read referencing perceived rude and disrespectful treatment at 
the September board meeting. Tiffany read her letter of resignation effective as of 12-31-16. 
 
Old Business for Discussion 
 

• Transportation Updates 
 
LAI employees have a choice to ride OATS: it is not a requirement.  
 
 
OATS transportation was to start later in the year but OATS has began running dedicated routes for 
LAI employees.  CCDDR staff is working with OATS to make the transition smoother.  Non-
waivered LAI employees are presently using OATS for transportation; however, by early 2017 it is 
anticipated that most LAI employees will be using OATS for transportation to and from work.  
CCDDR Executive Director and OATS has offered to meet with concerned parents regarding 
transportation.  The Task Force is making great progress.  Camden, Miller, and Morgan County 
agencies/representatives are working with OATS to establish a public transportation system Monday 
thru Saturday to begin sometime in 2017. 
 

• Macks Creek Park Community Event 
 
There was a great turnout for the Macks Creek Park Community Event.  The Camden County 
Commission approved moving forward with Unlimited Play on seeking grants and alternative funding 
sources at the beginning of 2017 for the inclusive playground to be built.  The Board will be 
presented a grant application from Unlimited Play in the coming weeks.  CCDDR will receive 
quarterly reports on the progress of funding received for the playground if the Board approves the 
request. 
 

• ARC of Missouri’s Annual Education Summit – “Employment: The Landscape has 
Changed” 

 
The summit was well attended and Ed asked if anyone that attended the meeting would like to share 
information or make comments.  Lisa Jackson felt the summit was very informative, the presenters 
did a great job, and the messages delivered by guest speakers were well received by the audience.   
 

• Victimization Public Awareness Campaign – Showing of First Victimization Film 
 
Two videos on victimization were shown.  The objectives of the short films are for social media 
purposes to make the public aware of how persons with disabilities can be victimized.   Since 
CCDDR’s client circumstances were unveiled, 4 other cases of extreme victimization were 
uncovered.  The entire state needs to be aware of victimization and share the film for public 
awareness.  State statutes need to be changed and offer recourse for victimization prosecution.  Adult 
protective services and other agencies need to get involved.     
 
New Business for Discussion 
 

• NONE 
 



(Board member, Lisa Jackson, arrived at meeting) 
 
September Support Coordination Report 
 
Current clients receiving CCDDR services are 302.  Support Coordinators are doing well, all working 
hard every day.  Intake is down somewhat. 
 
Motion by Max Fisher, second Paul DiBello, to approve the report as presented. 
 
                        

AYE:    Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 
  Lisa Jackson, Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 
 

            NO:    None 
 
September CARF Report 
 
CARF report has been split into two different sections:  Medicaid eligible and Medicaid ineligible. 
CCDDR is working with Set-Works to correct minor software problems. Some outcome measures 
have increased. Support Coordinators billing of all time, either billable or non-billable, was explained.  
Many long, non-billable hours are spent by support coordinators working closely with clients.  This is 
more humanitarian services than system-driven services.  Support Coordinator supervisor will talk 
with the team about meeting time lines on client plans and making sure the appropriate boxes are 
checked in the software system.  Surveys or satisfaction reports being returned from families 
regarding their support coordinators reflect high marks.   
 
Motion by Max Fisher, second Bob Robinson, to approve the report as presented. 
 

AYE:    Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 
  Lisa Jackson, Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 

 
                                   NO:      None 

 
September Agency Economic Report 
 
Agency is under budget in most expense categories.  The last claim confirmation did reach over 90% 
billing received.  Mechanisms are in place to keep an eye on the budget if a decrease becomes 
evident.  The year will end as anticipated or better than anticipated. 
 
Motion by Bob Robinson, second Max Fisher, to approve the report as presented. 
 

              AYE:    Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 
  Lisa Jackson, Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 

 
            NO:    None 

 
August 2016 Credit Card Statement 
 
No Questions and a vote not necessary. 



 
 
Motion by Paul DiBello, second Bob Robinson, to adjourn to closed session pursuant to section 
610.021 RSMO, subsections (8) and (14). A voice vote was taken. 
 

                                                    AYE:   Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 
  Lisa Jackson, Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 

 
      No:   None 

 
The Board returned from Closed Session 
 
Adjournment: 
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Lisa Jackson, to adjourn meeting. 
 
                                               
               AYE:    Judy Crawford, Paul DiBello, Suzanne Perkins, 

  Lisa Jackson, Bob Robinson, Max Fisher 
 

               No:     None 
 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________          ______________________________________ 
Board Chairman      Secretary  
 

 
 
 
 



CLC Monthly Report 

























LAI Monthly Report 













Support Coordination 
Report 



J 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORT COORDINATION REPORT  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

October 2016 
 

Consumer Caseloads 
 

• Number of Caseloads as of October 31st, 2016:  304 
• Budgeted Number of Caseloads:  300 
• There were 9 Full-Time Support Coordinators 

handling an average of 34 caseloads each 
• Pending Number of New Intakes:  6 
• Medicaid Eligibility:  84.87% 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CARF Report 
Medicaid Eligible 

Clients 



TCM

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of the Ɵme new consumers will be contacted by their Support Coordinator (SC) within 5 business days of their 
eligibility determinaƟon (1)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Targeted Case Management 33 2 0 94.29 %
Total 2 0 94.29 %33
Goal 100 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  Planning meeƟng is held within 30 days of eligibility date (2)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Targeted Case Management 31 2 0 93.94 %
Total 2 0 93.94 %31
Goal 100 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of all annual Medicaid Waiver plans and plans subject to the Regional Oĸce UƟlizaƟon Review (UR) will be 
submiƩed via fax and email at least 22 calendar days prior to the plan implementaƟon date. (3)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Is Waiver: Yes; 

Targeted Case Management 55 20 0 73.33 %
Total 20 0 73.33 %55
Goal 80 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of all annual non-waiver plans will be emailed to the Regional Oĸce at least 15 calendar days prior to the plan 
implementaƟon date (4)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Targeted Case Management 35 15 0 70.00 %
Total 15 0 70.00 %35
Goal 80 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:45:04 PM 1 of 4



PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of IP outcomes/acƟon steps will be met (5)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Targeted Case Management 980 1250 0 43.95 %
Total 1250 0 43.95 %980
Goal 80 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of Quarterly Reports met (6)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Age: 0 - 1000; 

Targeted Case Management 269 89 0 75.14 %
Total 89 0 75.14 %269
Goal 95 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % that shall have Outcomes implemented in their Individual Support Plan that encourage or support acƟve 
parƟcipaƟon in typical community events and acƟviƟes (7)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Targeted Case Management 196 72 0 73.13 %
Total 72 0 73.13 %196
Goal 75 %

PercentageNon-Billable HrsBillable Hrs NA

TCM:  % of Ɵme Billable (8)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Targeted Case Management 9332 7058 0 56.94 %
Total 7058 0 56.94 %9332
Goal 70 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:45:04 PM 2 of 4



PercentageNoYes NA

Consumer Forms (% of consumers will report being saƟsĮed or very saƟsĮed with the services provided by their SC, as 
indicated on the Consumer Survey. (9))
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Age: 0 - 1000; 

Targeted Case Management 106 0 4 100.00 %
Total 0 4 100.00 %106
Goal 90 %

PercentageNoYes NA

Consumer Forms (% of consumers or parent/guardians of consumers served shall indicate their SC is available when 
needed, as indicated on the Consumer Survey. (10))
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Age: 0 - 1000; 

Targeted Case Management 108 1 2 99.08 %
Total 1 2 99.08 %108
Goal 90 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of Individual Support Plans chosen for TCM Reviews conducted by RRO will not require remidiaƟon (11)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Targeted Case Management 9 4 69.23 %
Total 4 69.23 %9
Goal 80 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of consumers will be given the resources or educaƟon to formulate a personal plan for personal safety and risk 
reducƟon to beƩer protect them from abuse, neglect or exploitaƟon (12)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Targeted Case Management 53 215 0 19.78 %
Total 215 0 19.78 %53
Goal 100 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:45:04 PM 3 of 4



PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  Will host at least one event per year designed to educate the community on abuse, neglect and Įnancial 
exploitaƟon of vulnerable persons; and how to report it. (13)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Targeted Case Management 0 0 0 -
Total 0 0 -0
Goal 100 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  Provider demonstrates a commitment to community employment opportuniƟes for persons served by making at 
least 15 referrals to VocaƟonal RehabilitaƟon through the Outcomes and AcƟon Steps included in the ISP. (14)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Targeted Case Management 56 0 0 100.00 %
Total 0 0 100.00 %56
Goal 100 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:45:04 PM 4 of 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CARF Report 
Medicaid Ineligible 

Clients 



TCM

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of the Ɵme new consumers will be contacted by their Support Coordinator (SC) within 5 business days of their 
eligibility determinaƟon (1)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

CCDDR 6 0 0 100.00 %
Total 0 0 100.00 %6
Goal 100 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  Planning meeƟng is held within 30 days of eligibility date (2)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

CCDDR 6 0 0 100.00 %
Total 0 0 100.00 %6
Goal 100 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of all annual Medicaid Waiver plans and plans subject to the Regional Oĸce UƟlizaƟon Review (UR) will be 
submiƩed via fax and email at least 22 calendar days prior to the plan implementaƟon date. (3)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Is Waiver: Yes; 

CCDDR 0 0 0 -
Total 0 0 -0
Goal 80 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of all annual non-waiver plans will be emailed to the Regional Oĸce at least 15 calendar days prior to the plan 
implementaƟon date (4)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

CCDDR 17 3 0 85.00 %
Total 3 0 85.00 %17
Goal 80 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:47:19 PM 1 of 4



PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of IP outcomes/acƟon steps will be met (5)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

CCDDR 67 106 0 38.73 %
Total 106 0 38.73 %67
Goal 80 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of Quarterly Reports met (6)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

Age: 0 - 1000; 

CCDDR 34 8 0 80.95 %
Total 8 0 80.95 %34
Goal 95 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % that shall have Outcomes implemented in their Individual Support Plan that encourage or support acƟve 
parƟcipaƟon in typical community events and acƟviƟes (7)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

CCDDR 23 13 0 63.89 %
Total 13 0 63.89 %23
Goal 75 %

PercentageNon-Billable HrsBillable Hrs NA

TCM:  % of Ɵme Billable (8)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of Progress on ISPs, Service 
Monitoring/Quality Enhancement

CCDDR 565 1350 0 29.50 %
Total 1350 0 29.50 %565
Goal 70 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:47:19 PM 2 of 4



PercentageNoYes NA

Consumer Forms (% of consumers will report being saƟsĮed or very saƟsĮed with the services provided by their SC, as 
indicated on the Consumer Survey. (9))
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Age: 0 - 1000; 

CCDDR 11 0 2 100.00 %
Total 0 2 100.00 %11
Goal 90 %

PercentageNoYes NA

Consumer Forms (% of consumers or parent/guardians of consumers served shall indicate their SC is available when 
needed, as indicated on the Consumer Survey. (10))
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

Age: 0 - 1000; 

CCDDR 11 0 2 100.00 %
Total 0 2 100.00 %11
Goal 90 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of Individual Support Plans chosen for TCM Reviews conducted by RRO will not require remidiaƟon (11)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

CCDDR 9 4 69.23 %
Total 4 69.23 %9
Goal 80 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  % of consumers will be given the resources or educaƟon to formulate a personal plan for personal safety and risk 
reducƟon to beƩer protect them from abuse, neglect or exploitaƟon (12)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

CCDDR 4 32 0 11.11 %
Total 32 0 11.11 %4
Goal 100 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:47:19 PM 3 of 4



PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  Will host at least one event per year designed to educate the community on abuse, neglect and Įnancial 
exploitaƟon of vulnerable persons; and how to report it. (13)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

CCDDR 0 0 0 -
Total 0 0 -0
Goal 100 %

PercentageNoYes NA

TCM:  Provider demonstrates a commitment to community employment opportuniƟes for persons served by making at 
least 15 referrals to VocaƟonal RehabilitaƟon through the Outcomes and AcƟon Steps included in the ISP. (14)
For Services: 

For Events: 
Parameters: 

Case Closure, Case TransiƟon/Transfer, DocumentaƟon, Linking Resources, Planning Supports, Quarterly Review of 
Progress on ISPs, Service Monitoring/Quality Enhancement, Transfer of case responsibility

CCDDR 3 0 0 100.00 %
Total 0 0 100.00 %3
Goal 100 %

Outcome Measurement Report

11/7/2016 4:47:19 PM 4 of 4



Agency Economic 
Report 

(Unaudited) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENCY ECONOMIC REPORT  
 
 

Page - 1 - of 13 
 

 

October 2016 

 

 
Targeted Case Management Income 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 2 - of 13 
 

 
 

 
 

 
October 2016:  Grants Program Budget vs. Actuals 

 
Grants 

 
Actual Budget Variance 

Income       

   4000 Income 1,450  273  1,177  

Total Income 1,450  273  1,177  

Expenses       

   6500 Medicaid Match 3,735  5,178  (1,443) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 5,737  7,917  (2,180) 

   6900 Targeted Case Management   0  0  

   7100 Housing Programs 9,269  9,202  67  

   7200 CLC 10,682  13,708  (3,026) 

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 20,181  27,775  (7,594) 

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 6,627  9,544  (2,917) 

Total Expenses 56,232  73,324  (17,092) 

Net Operating Income (54,782) (73,051) 18,269  

Net Income (54,782) (73,051) 18,269  
 
 

 



Page - 3 - of 13 
 

 
January to October 2016:  Grants Program Budget vs. 

Actuals 

 
Grants 

 
Actual Budget Variance 

Income       

   4000 Income 904,101  889,849  14,252  

Total Income 904,101  889,849  14,252  

Expenses       

   5700 Office Expenses 0    0  

   5800 Other General & Administrative 125    125  

   6500 Medicaid Match 29,011  43,659  (14,648) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 47,531  52,784  (5,253) 

   6900 Targeted Case Management   0  0  

   7100 Housing Programs 86,512  86,805  (293) 

   7200 CLC 117,703  138,086  (20,383) 

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 209,437  290,956  (81,519) 

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 68,328  83,540  (15,212) 

Total Expenses 558,647  695,830  (137,183) 

Net Operating Income 345,454  194,019  151,435  

Net Income 345,454  194,019  151,435  

 
Grants Program Budget Variance Report 

 
Total Income: During October of 2016, total gross income for the Grant Program was higher than budgeted 
expectations.  YTD tax receipts were also higher than anticipated. 
 
 
Total Expenses: During October of 2016, Grant Program expenses were lower than budgeted primarily because 
Medicaid Match, Partnership for Hope Match, CLC, Special Needs, and Sheltered Employment expenses were 
lower than anticipated.   YTD expenses reflect lower than anticipated expenses in almost all categories.   
 
 

October 2016:  TCM Program Budget vs. Actuals 

 
TCM 

 
Actual Budget Variance 

Income       

   4000 Income 91,767  84,816  6,951  

Total Income 91,767  84,816  6,951  

Expenses       

   5000 Payroll & Benefits 70,440  71,526  (1,086) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance 558  1,040  (482) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services 4,523  6,445  (1,922) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings 2,353  700  1,653  

   5700 Office Expenses 2,598  3,025  (427) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative 2,395  1,326  1,069  

   5900 Utilities 833  1,500  (667) 

   6100 Insurance 1,189  1,225  (36) 



Page - 4 - of 13 
 

Total Expenses 84,889  86,787  (1,898) 

Net Operating Income 6,878  (1,971) 8,849  

Other Expenses       

   8500 Depreciation 2,512  2,500  12  

Total Other Expenses 2,512  2,500  12  

Net Other Income (2,512) (2,500) (12) 

Net Income 4,366  (4,471) 8,837  
 

January to October 2016:  TCM Prgram Budget vs. Actuals 

 
TCM 

 
Actual Budget Variance 

Income       

   4000 Income 909,580  901,219  8,361  

Total Income 909,580  901,219  8,361  

Expenses       

   5000 Payroll & Benefits 722,615  740,610  (17,995) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance 7,336  9,069  (1,733) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services 63,360  70,015  (6,655) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings 6,225  8,345  (2,120) 

   5700 Office Expenses 30,752  33,033  (2,281) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative 22,612  23,077  (465) 

   5900 Utilities 11,218  15,000  (3,782) 

   6100 Insurance 11,572  12,250  (678) 

Total Expenses 875,688  911,399  (35,711) 

Net Operating Income 33,891  (10,180) 44,071  

Other Expenses       

   8500 Depreciation 24,507  25,000  (493) 

Total Other Expenses 24,507  25,000  (493) 

Net Other Income (24,507) (25,000) 493  

Net Income 9,385  (35,180) 44,565  
 
 
 

TCM Program Budget Variance Report 
 

Total Income: During October of 2016 and overall year-to-date, TCM Program total income is slightly higher than 
budgeted expectations.  CCDDR continues to monitor several individuals/guardians/families who have not yet 
submitted all information to re-certify annual Medicaid eligibility, causing a lapse in Medicaid coverage, and 
several individuals/guardians/families who have not been submitting Medicaid spend-down invoices to CCDDR 
for payment, causing a lapse in Medicaid coverage.  CCDDR is working with families/individuals/guardians to 
submit spend-down invoices to CCDDR immediately upon receipt and assist with Medicaid re-certification 
completion/submission.   
 
Total Expenses: During October of 2016, overall TCM Program expenses were less than anticipated in almost all 
categories.  Overall YTD TCM expenses are lower than budgeted in all categories. Mechanisms are in place to 
reduce expenses if total income does not meet budgeted expectations.  
 
  
 
 



Page - 5 - of 13 
 

Balance Sheet 
As of October 31, 2016 

 
Grants TCM Total 

ASSETS       

   Current Assets       

      Bank Accounts       

         1000 Bank Accounts     0  

            1005 Grant Bank Accounts     0  

               1010 Grant Account (County Tax Funds) - First Nat'l Bank 15,266  0  15,266  

               1015 Grant Reserve Account (County Tax Funds) - Central Bank 229    229  

               1020 Grant Certificate of Deposit (County Tax Funds) 0    0  

               1025 Grant Account (County Tax Funds) - Sullivan Bank 402,233    402,233  

               1030 Grant Operating Reserves Account (Tax Funds) - Sullivan Bank 218,200    218,200  

            Total 1005 Grant Bank Accounts 635,928  0  635,928  

            1050 TCM Bank Accounts     0  

               1055 TCM Account (TCM Funds) - 1st Nat'l Bank 0  235,504  235,504  

               1060 TCM Certificate of Deposit (TCM Funds)   0  0  

            Total 1050 TCM Bank Accounts 0  235,504  235,504  

         Total 1000 Bank Accounts 635,928  235,504  871,432  

      Total Bank Accounts 635,928  235,504  871,432  

      Accounts Receivable       

         1300 Property Taxes     0  

            1310 Property Tax Receivable 981,753    981,753  

            1315 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (24,155)   (24,155) 

         Total 1300 Property Taxes 957,598  0  957,598  

         1350 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 0    0  

      Total Accounts Receivable 957,598  0  957,598  

      Other current assets       

         1389 Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable 0    0  

         1399 TCM Remittance Advices In-Transit 0  91,282  91,282  

         1400 Other Current Assets     0  

            1410 Other Deposits 0    0  

         Total 1400 Other Current Assets 0  0  0  

         1450 Prepaid Expenses   0  0  

            1455 Prepaid-Insurance 0  5,489  5,489  

         Total 1450 Prepaid Expenses 0  5,489  5,489  

      Total Other current assets 0  96,770  96,770  

   Total Current Assets 1,593,526  332,274  1,925,800  

   Fixed Assets       

      1500 Fixed Assets     0  

         1510 100 Third Street Land   47,400  47,400  

         1511 Keystone Land   14,000  14,000  

         1520 100 Third Street Building   431,091  431,091  

         1521 Keystone   163,498  163,498  

         1525 Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   (123,026) (123,026) 

         1526 Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   (9,197) (9,197) 

         1530 100 Third Street Remodeling   126,736  126,736  



Page - 6 - of 13 
 

         1531 Keystone Remodeling   17,949  17,949  

         1535 Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   (38,447) (38,447) 

         1536 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   (1,579) (1,579) 

         1540 Equipment   64,209  64,209  

         1545 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (34,316) (34,316) 

         1550 Vehicles   6,740  6,740  

         1555 Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   (6,740) (6,740) 

      Total 1500 Fixed Assets 0  658,317  658,317  

   Total Fixed Assets 0  658,317  658,317  

TOTAL ASSETS 1,593,526  990,590  2,584,117  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY       

   Liabilities       

      Current Liabilities       

         Accounts Payable       

            1900 Accounts Payable 0  0  0  

         Total Accounts Payable 0  0  0  

         Other Current Liabilities       

            2000 Current Liabilities     0  

               2005 Accrued Accounts Payable 0  0  0  

               2006 DMH Payable 0    0  

               2010 Accrued Payroll Expense 0  259  259  

               2015 Accrued Compensated Absences 0  0  0  

               2025 Prepaid Services 0    0  

               2030 Deposits 0  17  17  

               2050 Prepaid Tax Revenue 1,410    1,410  

               2055 Deferred Inflows - Property Taxes 880,408    880,408  

               2060 Payroll Tax Payable   0  0  

                  2061 Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  (347) (347) 

                  2062 Social Security Tax Payable 0  158  158  

                  2063 Medicare Tax Payable 0  (17) (17) 

                  2064 MO State W / H Tax Payable 0  1,766  1,766  

               Total 2060 Payroll Tax Payable 0  1,561  1,561  

               2070 Payroll Clearing     0  

                  2071 AFLAC Pre-tax W / H 0  756  756  

                  2072 AFLAC Post-tax W / H 0  74  74  

                  2073 Vision Insuance W / H 0  (110) (110) 

                  2074 Health Insurance W / H 0  28  28  

                  2075 Dental Insurance W / H 0  (667) (667) 

                  2076 Savings W / H   0  0  

                  2078 Misc W / H   338  338  

                  2079 Other W / H   0  0  

               Total 2070 Payroll Clearing 0  419  419  

            Total 2000 Current Liabilities 881,818  2,256  884,073  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 881,818  2,256  884,073  

      Total Current Liabilities 881,818  2,256  884,073  

   Total Liabilities 881,818  2,256  884,073  

   Equity       



Page - 7 - of 13 
 

      3000 Restricted Grant Fund Balances     0  

         3001 Operational 0    0  

         3005 Operational Reserves 217,546    217,546  

         3010 Transportation 19,959    19,959  

         3015 New Programs 0    0  

         3030 Special Needs (1,813)   (1,813) 

         3040 Sheltered Workshop 0    0  

         3045 Traditional Medicaid Match 3,016    3,016  

         3050 Partnership for Hope Match (426)   (426) 

         3055 Building/Remodeling/Expansion 42,165    42,165  

         3065 Legal 10,026    10,026  

         3070 TCM 0    0  

      Total 3000 Restricted Grant Fund Balances 290,473  0  290,473  

      3500 Restricted TCM Fund Balances     0  

         3501 Operational   6,721  6,721  

         3505 Operational Reserves   194,949  194,949  

         3510 Transportation   0  0  

         3515 New Programs   0  0  

         3530 Special Needs   0  0  

         3550 Partnership for Hope Match   0  0  

         3555 Building/Remodeling/Expansion   21,636  21,636  

         3560 Sponsorships   0  0  

         3565 Legal   9,533  9,533  

         3599 Other   679,573  679,573  

      Total 3500 Restricted TCM Fund Balances 0  912,413  912,413  

      3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances 1  (49) (48) 

      3950 Prior Period Adjustment 0  0  0  

      3999 Clearing Account 38,098  104,268  142,367  

      Net Income 345,454  9,385  354,839  

   Total Equity 674,027  1,026,017  1,700,044  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,555,844  1,028,273  2,584,117  
 
 

October 2016:  Grants Program Cash Flow Statement 

 
Grants 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

   Net Income (54,782) 

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:   

         1900 Accounts Payable (308) 

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (308) 

Net cash provided by operating activities (55,090) 

Net cash increase for period (55,090) 

Cash at beginning of period 691,018  

Cash at end of period 635,928  
 
 
 



Page - 8 - of 13 
 

January to October 2016:  Grants Program Cash Flow Statement 

 
Grants 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

   Net Income 345,454  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:   

         1389 Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable 0  

         1900 Accounts Payable 0  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 0  

Net cash provided by operating activities 345,454  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

   3030 Restricted Grant Fund Balances:Special Needs (1,888) 

   3040 Restricted Grant Fund Balances:Sheltered Workshop 0  

   3045 Restricted Grant Fund Balances:Traditional Medicaid Match (2,507) 

   3050 Restricted Grant Fund Balances:Partnership for Hope Match (9,381) 

   3065 Restricted Grant Fund Balances:Legal (10,923) 

   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (70,867) 

   3999 Clearing Account 38,098  

Net cash provided by financing activities (57,468) 

Net cash increase for period 287,986  

Cash at beginning of period 347,942  

Cash at end of period 635,928  
 
 

October 2016:  TCM Program Cash Flow Statement 

 
TCM 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

   Net Income 4,366  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:   

         1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance 2,027  

         1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street 898  

         1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone 341  

         1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street 528  

         1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone 75  

         1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 671  

         1900 Accounts Payable 0  

         2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  

         2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable 0  

         2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable 0  

         2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable (15) 

         2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H (37) 

         2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H (6) 

         2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H (8) 

         2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H (35) 

         2076 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Savings W / H 0  

         2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H 338  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 4,776  

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,142  



Page - 9 - of 13 
 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

   3501 Restricted TCM Fund Balances:Operational (3,358) 

Net cash provided by financing activities (3,358) 

Net cash increase for period 5,784  

Cash at beginning of period 321,001  

Cash at end of period 326,785  
 
 

January to October 2016:  TCM Program Cash Flow Statement 

 
TCM 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

   Net Income 9,385  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:   

         1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance 12,486  

         1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street 8,981  

         1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone 3,406  

         1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street 5,281  

         1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone 748  

         1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 6,091  

         1900 Accounts Payable (243) 

         2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  

         2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable 0  

         2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable 0  

         2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable (330) 

         2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H (312) 

         2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H (60) 

         2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H (35) 

         2074 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Health Insurance W / H 28  

         2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H (206) 

         2076 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Savings W / H 0  

         2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H (255) 

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 35,579  

Net cash provided by operating activities 44,964  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

   1540 Fixed Assets:Equipment (3,250) 

Net cash provided by investing activities (3,250) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

   3501 Restricted TCM Fund Balances:Operational 6,721  

   3555 Restricted TCM Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion 16,431  

   3565 Restricted TCM Fund Balances:Legal 869  

   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (164,336) 

   3999 Clearing Account 104,268  

Net cash provided by financing activities (36,048) 

Net cash increase for period 5,666  

Cash at beginning of period 321,119  

Cash at end of period 326,785  
 



Page - 10 - of 13 
 

 
 
 

October 2016:  Check Detail 
      1025 Grant Account (County Tax Funds) - Sullivan Bank 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 
10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3659 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (5,737.12) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3661 MO HealthNet (225.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3662 MO HealthNet (225.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3663 MO HealthNet (225.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3664 MO HealthNet (225.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3665 MO HealthNet (225.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3666 Lake Area Industries (19,533.49) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3667 Childrens Learning Center (10,681.97) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3668 Achieving Life Skills (292.80) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3669 Benton Street Counseling LLC (45.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3670 Dave's Hideaway Motel (300.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3671 Elegant Transport (541.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3672 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3673 Sharla Jenks (56.87) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3674 Benton Street Counseling LLC (45.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3675 MO HealthNet (99.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3676 Benton Street Counseling LLC (30.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3677 MO HealthNet (259.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3678 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3679 MO HealthNet (395.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3680 MO HealthNet (504.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3681 MO HealthNet (490.00) 

10/14/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3682 MO HealthNet (99.00) 

10/14/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3683 MO HealthNet (24.00) 

10/14/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3684 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (4,173.62) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3685 Brookview Apartments of Camdenton (100.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3686 Camden Manors, Inc. (100.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3687 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (374.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3688 David A Schlenfort (498.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3689 Garry Euler (674.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3690 Glen Donnach, LLC (100.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3691 Jacob and/or Lana Kentner (1,316.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3692 JC Sutton LLC (375.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3693 John Farrell Real Estate Company (281.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3694 Phyllis Ilene Hood (561.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3695 Professional Management Group, Inc. (545.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3696 
Revelation Construction & Development, 
LLC (100.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3697 Todd Meyer (297.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3698 Valerie Stonitsch (154.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3699 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (204.00) 



Page - 11 - of 13 
 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3700 
Revelation Construction & Development, 
LLC (881.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3701 
Revelation Construction & Development, 
LLC (646.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3702 
Revelation Construction & Development, 
LLC (412.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3703 
Revelation Construction & Development, 
LLC (293.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3704 MO HealthNet (14.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3705 OATS, Inc. (648.00) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3706 Peak Sport and Spine Rehab (185.00) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3707 Dave's Hideaway Motel (300.00) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3708 MO HealthNet (225.00) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3709 RLM Rentals, LLC (458.00) 

10/25/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3710 Valerie Stonitsch (154.00) 

10/25/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3711 Valerie Stonitsch (154.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3712 MO HealthNet (188.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3713 MO HealthNet (654.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3714 MO HealthNet (654.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3715 MO HealthNet (120.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3716 MO HealthNet (271.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 3717 Dave's Hideaway Motel (300.00) 

           1055 TCM Account (TCM Funds) - 1st Nat'l Bank 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 
10/07/2016 Expense 151531 Connie L Baker (868.28) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151532 Rachel K Baskerville (1,138.51) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151533 Myrna Blaine (1,400.12) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151534 Cynthia Brown (1,032.07) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151535 Jennifer Clemons (922.12) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151536 Lori Cornwell (818.96) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151537 Jeanna K Cupp (942.86) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151538 Linda Gifford (880.41) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151539 Sharla Jenks (857.29) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151540 Ryan Johnson (1,086.65) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151541 Micah J Joseph (1,122.93) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151542 Annie Meyer (1,089.86) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151543 Edmond J Thomas (1,097.54) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151544 Eddie L Thomas (2,053.69) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151545 Marcie L. Vansyoc (1,095.32) 

10/07/2016 Expense 151546 Nicole M Whittle (1,023.07) 

10/07/2016 Expense 10/07/2016 Edward Jones (75.00) 

10/07/2016 Expense 10/07/2016 Internal Revenue Service (6,131.64) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6916 G G Maha (67.64) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6917 Lake Sun Leader (55.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6918 Lori Cornwell (108.44) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6919 Ameren Missouri (314.71) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6920 AT&T (81.92) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6921 Connie L Baker (37.04) 



Page - 12 - of 13 
 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6922 Cynthia Brown (60.50) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6924 Jennifer Clemons (109.46) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6925 MSW Interactive Designs LLC (30.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6926 Linda Simms (182.39) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6927 Marcie L. Vansyoc (77.33) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6928 Virtual Plumbing inc. (545.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6929 Aflac (689.08) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6930 Camden County PWSD #2 (41.61) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6931 Ezard's, Inc. (74.12) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6932 GB Maintenance Supply (37.46) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6933 Jeanna K Cupp (138.63) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6934 LaClede Electric Cooperative (437.58) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6935 Refills Ink (739.87) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6936 TruClean (55.00) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6937 Linda Gifford (130.73) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6938 G G Maha (1,094.37) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6939 Linda Simms (1,094.44) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6940 Eddie L Thomas (517.07) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6941 Ryan Johnson (67.64) 

10/07/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6942 TruClean (120.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6943 Childrens Learning Center (71.64) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6944 Deer Run Properties LLC (300.00) 

10/13/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6945 Jessica North (70.00) 

10/14/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6946 City Of Camdenton (88.04) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6947 Ezard's, Inc. (1,800.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6948 Bankcard Center (4,170.00) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6949 Office Business Equipment (355.08) 

10/19/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6950 TruClean (55.00) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6951 Delta Dental of Missouri (453.08) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6952 G G Maha (1,074.60) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6953 Lake Area Industries (40.00) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6954 Linda Simms (1,094.44) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6955 Micah J Joseph (271.13) 

10/20/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6956 Office Business Equipment (143.99) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151549 Connie L Baker (868.28) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151550 Rachel K Baskerville (1,035.25) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151551 Myrna Blaine (1,400.15) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151552 Cynthia Brown (1,057.19) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151553 Jennifer Clemons (923.34) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151554 Lori Cornwell (827.80) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151555 Jeanna K Cupp (924.56) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151556 Linda Gifford (854.09) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151557 Sharla Jenks (968.42) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151558 Ryan Johnson (1,020.37) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151559 Micah J Joseph (1,068.75) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151560 Annie Meyer (1,061.87) 



Page - 13 - of 13 
 

10/21/2016 Expense 151562 Eddie L Thomas (2,053.66) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151561 Edmond J Thomas (1,097.52) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151563 Marcie L. Vansyoc (1,086.91) 

10/21/2016 Expense 151564 Nicole M Whittle (1,033.92) 

10/21/2016 Expense 10/21/2016 Edward Jones (75.00) 

10/21/2016 Expense 10/21/2016 Internal Revenue Service (6,098.83) 

10/21/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6957 KMB Technical Group, Inc. (913.70) 

10/25/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6958 Missouri Dept of Revenue (1,808.00) 

10/25/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6959 Mo Division Of Employment Security (293.38) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6960 All American Termite & Pest Control (255.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6961 Mo Consolidated Health Care (12,093.76) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6962 Principal Life Ins (245.76) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6963 TruClean (175.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6964 Bryan Cave LLP (96.25) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6965 Charter Business (530.29) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6966 Clean Cut Lawn Care etc. LLC (94.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6967 E-Z Disposal (22.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6968 Films for Humanity, LLC (797.30) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6969 Staples (470.98) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6971 KMB Technical Group, Inc. (356.00) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6972 Lagers (3,322.40) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6973 Jeanna K Cupp (173.67) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6974 Linda Simms (152.81) 

10/28/2016 Bill Payment (Check) 6975 Eddie L Thomas (297.47) 
 



September 2016 
Credit Card Statement 

 

























































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolution 2016-41, 
2016-42, 2016-43, 
2016-44, 2016-45, 

2016-46, & 2016-47 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-41  
 
 

 

AMENDED COMPLIANCE MANAGER JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions and creates new Bylaws, 
policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain 
compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camdenton County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend the Compliance 
Manager job description, included as Attachment “A” hereto. 
 
2.  That the Board recognizes there was need to amend this job description to remain efficient in its 
administrative operations and management. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” 
Resolution 2016-41 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
(d/b/a Camden Co. Developmental Disability Resources) 

Job Description 
 
Job Title: Compliance Manager 
Reports To: Executive Director 
FLSA Status:  Non-Exempt 
Employment Status:  Full-Time 
Minimum Hours per Work Week:  up to 28 (Part-Time) or 40 (Full-Time) 
Minimum Starting Wage:  $16.00 Hourly 
Last Reviewed Date: 11/21/2016    Last Revised Date: 11/21/2016 

 
The Compliance Manager shall serve as the designated Procurement Officer, Human 
Resources Officer, Records Manager, and Compliance Officer under the oversight of the 
Executive Director.  The Compliance Manager shall be responsible for ensuring 
compliance with Agency operations and documents, as well as the supervision of human 
resource, procurement, and other personnel as prescribed by the Executive Director. 

 
General Description:  

 
Assists Executive Director and Board members with regard to CCDDR Board meetings 
records, CARF Accreditation, Accounts Receivable, human resource records, 
procurement records, employee benefits updates, human resource processes, procurement 
processes, employee training schedules, Web site updates, organizational tracking, 
organizational scheduling, and miscellaneous other duties as assigned by the Executive 
Director. 

 
Essential Duties & Responsibilities: 

 
• Adhere to all policies and procedures of Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
• Maintain compliance with all regulatory governances on confidentiality of 

client records, personnel records, and other privacy and HIPPA related 
information. 

• Maintain recordkeeping systems of the agency. 
• Communicate professionally in both written form and in person. 
• Maintain a thorough working knowledge of agency’s computer systems. 
• Input data into computer systems as needed. 
• Maintain human resource merit tracking records, Agency insurances, and 

employee benefits 
• Design and develop new forms and templates as-needed. 
• Assist in gathering data and distributing reports. 
• Maintaining an appropriate filing system for vendors, deposits, personnel records, 

and other pertinent filing requirements 
• Depositing funds into CCDDR accounts 



• Assist Executive Director in preparing reports, presentations, documentation, etc. 
needed for Board and committee meetings 

• Copy & distribute monthly/quarterly Support Coordination reports. 
• Prepare monthly agency calendar. 
• Maintain employee training spreadsheet/reminders for re-training. 
• Verify accuracy of credit card invoices and statements. 
• Verify accuracy of invoices from vendors and suppliers 
• Maintain communications with vendors, suppliers, DDD staff, DMH staff, and 

area providers’ staff. 
• Oversees the Procurement Process as a Procurement Officer and develops RFP’s 

and RFQ’s. 
• Update fixed asset list of agency annually. 
• Advise Executive Director on need for clerical and personnel support 

enhancements/improvements. 
• Acts as Records Custodian for all client and CCDDR records 
• Train and assist the Targeted Case Management Assistant as needed 
• Establish and maintain volunteer and internship programs. 
• Conduct new employee, volunteer, and internship orientations/training. 
• Update all necessary annual or periodic forms; signature requirements for related 

disclosures, agreements, and documents; and maintain contract files and tracking 
• Ensure Agency compliance within all regulatory matters, Bylaws, policies, and 

procedures 
• Complete other duties and assignments as directed by the Executive Director 

 
Minimum Requirements: 

 
• HS diploma or GED 
• Minimum three years of experience in Targeted Case Management and Senate 

Bill 40 Board functions, processes, procedures, and requirements. 
• Ability to type 45 wpm 
• Prior experience and proficiency in MS Word, MS Excel, MS Access, and MS 

PowerPoint 
 
NOTE: All applicants given a conditional offer of employment will have their education 
credentials, experience credentials, and background screenings evaluated and verified 

 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that 
must be met by an employee to successfully perform the primary functions of this job. 
While performing this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands and fingers to 
handle or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee 
must occasionally lift and/or move up to 20 pounds over a short distance. 



Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable otherwise qualified individuals to 
perform the essential functions of the job. 

 
 
 
I have reviewed this Job Description with my supervisor and agree to assume all of the 
duties herein. 

 
 
 
(Employee Signature) (Date) 

(Supervisor Signature) (Date) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-42  
 
 

 

AMENDED ACCOUNTING MANAGER JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions and creates new Bylaws, 
policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain 
compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camdenton County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend the Accounting 
Manager job description, included as Attachment “A” hereto. 
 
2.  That the Board recognizes there was need to amend this job description to remain efficient in its 
administrative operations and management. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” 
Resolution 2016-42 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
dba Camden County Developmental Disabilities Resources 

Job Description 
 

Job Title: Accounting Manager 
Reports To: Executive Director 
FLSA Status:  Exempt 
Employment Status:  Full-Time 
Hours per Work Week: 40 
Minimum Starting Wage:  $48,000 Annually 
Last Reviewed Date: 11/21/2016 Last Revised Date: 11/21/2016 

 
General Description: The Accounting Manager reports to the Executive Director of the 
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board/dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources (CCDDR), and is responsible for the fiscal operations and supervision of 
accounting personnel for CCDDR. 

 

 
Essential Duties & Responsibilities: 

 
• Prepares, verifies, and encodes requisitions, invoices, complex journal entries, 

client budgets, or other transaction documents for accuracy; responsible for accuracy, 
completeness, and compliance with pertinent regulations and CCDDR 
policies/procedures; approves transaction documents within designated limits. 

• Determines if funds are available for expenditures or requisitions and posts to proper 
account; monitors fund/account balances and notifies appropriate personnel when limits 
are reached. 

• Maintains special logs, databases, or records as directed by the Executive Director 
• Balances and reconciles internal accounts or records with CCDDR system; verifies 

accuracy and completeness and makes necessary adjustments. 
• Reviews computer reports to identify and trace sources of error; makes necessary 

corrections. 
• Prepares a variety of straightforward special and recurring accounting-related reports, 

summaries, financial statements, statistical reports and reconciliation. 
• Performs or reviews specialized calculations related to posting and accounting functions. 
• Solves problems and recommends changes in procedure in accordance with previous 

training or experience. 
• Ensures requirements and specifications of CCDDR or outside agencies are met by 

monitoring and complying with reporting requirements and opening or closing accounts 
as specified/required. 

• Controls small petty cash fund; monitors disbursement and fund replenishment; prepares 
necessary entries. 

• Contacts department personnel, account representatives or other appropriate personnel 
regularly to resolve problems; keeps all parties informed and serves as a reference source; 
composes correspondence of technical nature pertaining to assignments. 

• Prepares, controls, and maintains personnel payroll, payroll accruals, and related 
accounting entries. 

• Monitors Medicaid billing claims on behalf of CCDDR for Targeted Case Management 
and other services on a routine schedule as approved by the Executive Director 

• Acts as the Agency contact for fiscal and accounting audits 
• Acts as a Procurement Officer in awarding goods and services on behalf of the 

Agency 
• Assist Executive Director in preparing reports, presentations, documentation, etc. needed 

for Board and committee meetings 



• Other miscellaneous duties as directed or prescribed by the Executive Director 
 
 
 
Minimu m Requirements: 

 
• Bachelor’s degree from a four year accredited college or university with a major in 

Accounting or related field or HS diploma/GED with a minimum of 10 years 
experience in accounting, accounting principles, and/or accounting management 

• Valid Missouri driver's license & clean driving record. 
• Have access to adequate transportation and be able to travel as needed. 

 
NOTE:  Continued employment will be contingent on the completion of the background 
screening and confirmation of credentials. 

 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be 
met by an employee to successfully perform the primary functions of this job. While performing 
this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands and fingers to handle or feel objects, 
tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee must occasionally lift and/or 
move up to 20 pounds over a short distance.  Vision abilities include close vision, distance 
vision, peripheral vision, and depth perception. The employee is required to occasionally stand, 
walk, and climb stairs. The employee must be able to communicate one on one with staff, clients, 
guardians, and groups. 

 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable otherwise qualified individuals to perform 
the essential functions of the job. 

 
“I hereb y agree to comply with responsibilities of Job Description as outlined in this document” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signature) (Date) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-43  
 
 

 

AMENDED DIRECTOR OF SERVICES AND SUPPORTS JOB DESCRIPTION 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions and creates new Bylaws, 
policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain 
compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camdenton County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend the Director of 
Services and Supports (formerly named “Consumer Support Director”) job description, included as 
Attachment “A” hereto. 
 
2.  That the Board recognizes there was need to amend this job description to remain efficient in its 
administrative operations and management. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” 
Resolution 2016-43 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
Job Description 

 
Job Title: Director of Services and Supports 
Reports To: Executive Director 
FLSA Status:  Exempt 
Employment Status:  Full-Time 
Minimum Hours per Work Week:  40 
Minimum Starting Wage:  $48,000 Annually 
Last Reviewed Date: 11/21/2016 Last Revised Date: 11/21/2016 

 
General Description: 

 
 
This is an executive level position requiring the exercise of discretion and independent 
judgment.  The Director of Services and Supports is responsible for management and 
administrative functions in client support programs.  This includes planning, provision, 
analysis and coordination of programs and services with the goal of effectively and 
efficiently using agency and other available resources to enable Camden County residents 
with developmental disabilities to progress toward normal living and to develop, as far as 
possible, their capacity, performance and relationships with other persons through 
individually planned services.  This position has program management responsibilities and 
decision-making authority in assisting with program development; budget development; 
and supervision of TCM and Support staff.  The Director of Services and Supports is 
expected to exercise considerable initiative and independent judgment in planning and 
carrying out responsibilities; and to work collaboratively with other members of the 
CCDDR administrative team.  The Director of Services and Supports reports to the 
Executive Director of CCDDR, who reviews the work through reports and evaluation of 
results. The person occupying this position must exercise reasonable and prudent judgment 
as well as the mental and physical abilities to recognize emergency situations and 
coordinate emergency responses. The Director must coordinate with outside agencies that 
also serve the same population and must keep abreast of innovations, legal and regulatory 
changes, and changing client needs.  The Director also plays a role in promoting the 
mission of the agency in the community and advocating for client needs and policy changes 
in the community and legislative arena. 

 
Essential Duties: 

 
• Plans, coordinates, and supervises the work of an inter-disciplinary case management 

and/or assessment team; assigns cases and evaluates the work of the case 
management and/or assessment team members. 

• Monitors the development and implementation of support plans or the assessment 
process; reviews and approves Individual Support Plans or assesses support needs. 



• Works with staff to address emergency and crisis situations; provide advice, 
recommendations, and training; serves as the first line of appeal for grievances; 
reviews and evaluates work performance of Support Coordinators; gathers data for 
reports as requested. 

• Responsible for the development of direct service programs such as but not limited to 
Personal Assistants, Community Integration, and Day Services.  This includes 
writing and implementing policies and procedures defining the creation and filling of 
direct care positions. 

• Ensure that services are provided in a way that best meets client needs, in a 
manner that maintains compliance with applicable rules and regulations of 
certifying and oversight agencies, that maximizes available resources and that 
ensures the health, safety and welfare of the clients served. 

• Participate with vendors in developing new programs, assessing programs, or 
modifying programs to upgrade the quality of services. 

•  Maintain Organizational Quality and Service  Excellence 
• Participate on the Administrative Team, and other agency committees as 

assigned. Help maintain general compliance with program policies, 
Department of Mental Health contract stipulations and certification and 
accreditation standards. 

• Use time, equipment and resources wisely. 
• Maintain professional demeanor and appropriate personal appearance. 
• Maintain effective professional communication and relationships with staff, 

service providers, clients, office personnel, and other community agencies. 
• Assist in promoting the aims and objectives of CCDDR within the community. 
• Recommend and assist in implementation of marketing strategies by making 

presentations for media, civic organizations, and advocacy groups. 
• Assist with Case Record Reviews, quality reviews and other monitoring activities. 
• Assists in the evaluation of programs and services relating to compliance with 

accreditation standards, contractual requirements, state and federal law; assists 
in follow-up activities addressing these findings. 

• Implement reasonable safeguards to maintain and secure agency 
procedures. 

• Perform responsibilities and coordinate assigned staff to maintain and safeguard 
the program records and their confidentiality in accordance with policies of 
agency. 

• Ensure timely entry of data into the agency's computerized client information 
system. 

• Billing of Agency services to MoHealthnet or appropriate entity according to the 
Agency designated schedule or as prescribed by the Executive Director; and 
ensuring compliance with billing practices, client logs, and all other billing related 
data as prescribed by applicable Federal, State, or governing jurisdiction guidelines. 

• Report and participate as appropriate in the investigation of situations 



involving neglect or abuse. 
• Completes other duties and assignments as prescribed by the Executive 

Director. 
• Screen, orient, train, supervise and evaluate Support Coordinators, and assigned 

program staff according to established procedures. 
• Schedule and conduct frequent staff meetings ensuring minutes are taken and 

include but are not limited to the date, persons in attendance, topics discussed, 
actions taken, responsibilities assigned, and recommendations  made. 

• Responsible for scheduling signed staff, approving leave and schedule 
adjustment requests to ensure that work is completed timely. 

• Responsible for receiving and reviewing time sheets, attesting the accuracy of 
attendance reports and submitting for payroll processing 

• Plan and assign work of staff based on established priorities of 
the agency. 

• Responsible for making recommendations on employment actions for assigned 
program staff including, hiring, termination, suspension, promotion, salary 
adjustments, probationary actions and grievance proceedings. 

• Ensure compliance with agency hiring procedures including: personal and 
professional reference checks, arrest record checks, Missouri chauffeur's 
license, credit check, abuse neglect checks. 

• Inform, interpret and monitor assigned staff for compliance with established 
agency policy and procedures. 

• Promote communication among staff and office personnel. 
• Manage program budget in a fiscally responsible manner, observing 

established spending limits, reviewing itemized monthly expenditures, and 
reporting to the Executive Director any need to adjust or revise the budget. 

• Implement agency property and inventory policies and procedures 
applicable to assigned facilities and equipment. 

• Ensure compliance with agency procurement procedures. 
• Authorize case budgets which identify service providers, unit and 

aggregate costs of implementing the Individual Plans. 
• Conduct responsibilities consistent with the principles of good teamwork: 
• Place team performance before personal success or failure; 
• Communicate openly, frequently and professionally; 
• Facilitate two-way communication with other team members; 
• Display personal and professional respect towards others; 
• Share information and resources which enhance the performance of other 

members; 
• Support the total team goals and decisions; 
• Identify problems; give all ideas a fair hearing, and creatively brainstorm 

solutions; 
• Respond to the communicated needs of others. 



• Report any required legal proceedings and conflicts to supervisor in compliance 
with employee personnel policies. 

• Attend meetings of the Board of Directors of the agency, responding to inquiries of 
the Board, making presentations and participating in discussions 

 
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities: 

 
• Comprehensive knowledge of case management methods, principles, and techniques 

in regard to support or assessment services 
• Comprehensive knowledge of various intellectual/developmental disabilities and 

corresponding vendors and services available for clients 
• Comprehensive knowledge of statutes, administrative rules, and regulations relating 

to program operation 
• Comprehensive knowledge of the behavioral sciences and allied disciplines involved 

in the evaluation, care, and training of persons with intellectual/developmental 
disabilities 

• Demonstrate responsibility for maintaining the integrity, privacy and 
confidentiality of client-related information and adherence to policies and 
procedures pertaining to protected health information. 

 
Computer Skills 

 

Ability to operate assigned equipment including appropriate computer hardware and 
software Skilled in use of computer including word processing, data based software, 
internet, e-mail, and data entry. 

 
 
 
 
Language Skills 

 

• Exhibit clear and readily understandable oral and written communication 
skills, exhibiting knowledge of English usage, spelling, grammar, and 
composition. 

• Ability to read, analyze, and interpret Individual and other treatment plans, 
medical records and other collateral records, policies and procedures, 
correspondence, general business periodicals, professional journals, technical 
journals and governmental regulations. 

• Ability to write Individual Plans and other reports, case notes, professional 
correspondence, service authorization requests and procedure manuals 

• Ability to effectively facilitate meetings, present job related information, and 
respond to common inquiries and complaints, orally and in writing, including but 
not limited to, staff, clients, client family members, client guardians, elected 
officials, state and federal employees, surveyors, regulatory agencies, members of 
the business community, service providers  and/or board of directors. 



• Ability to understand, interpret and apply instructions, rules and regulations 
• Ability to communicate with others and to assimilate and understand 

information in a manner consistent with the essential job functions 
 
 
Reasoning Ability 

 

• Ability to define complex problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid 
conclusions. 

• Ability to evaluate and solve problems associated with client needs, crisis 
situations, and service and resource identification. 

• Ability to apply common sense understanding to deal with problems 
• Ability to discern moral questions and seek to make reliable ethical judgments; 

and make sound decisions in a manner consistent with the essential job functions 
• Ability to function effectively in an office environment t h at is fast paced and result 

oriented, which presents multiple demands with frequent interruptions, constantly 
shifting schedules and priorities, and simultaneous deadlines requiring employee to 
be flexible, organized, cooperative 

 
Minimum Requirements: 

 
One or more year‘s experience as a Case Management and Assessment Supervisor with 
the State of Missouri (DMH/DD) or other TCM entity and meet federally defined QDDP 
requirements; a Master's degree in a human services field, and at least 2 years experience 
working directly with persons with developmental disabilities. 

 
Have access to an insured and properly maintained vehicle for your travel and a valid 
Missouri Driver’s License 

 

 
Pass all background checks conducted by CCDDR 

 
 
 

NOTE: All applicants given a conditional offer of employment will have their education 
credentials, experience credentials, and background screenings evaluated and verified. 

 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that 
must be met by an employee to successfully perform the primary functions of this job. 
While performing this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands and fingers to 
handle or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee 
must occasionally lift and/or move up to 20 pounds over a short distance, and/or perform 
personal care tasks, including transfers. Vision abilities include close vision, distance 
vision, peripheral vision, and depth perception. The employee is required to occasionally 
stand, walk, and climb stairs. The employee must be able to communicate one on one with 
staff, clients, guardians, and groups. 



Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable otherwise qualified individuals to 
perform the essential functions of the job. 

 

 
 
“I hereby agree to comply with responsibilities of Job Description as outlined in this 
document” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signature) (Date) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-44  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #10 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions and creates new Bylaws, 
policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain 
compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #10, 
Grants & POS Agreements (formerly named “Grants”). 
 
2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #10 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2016-44 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
PURPOSE: 

It is the policy of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (“CCDDR”) to award 
grants and Purchase of Services and/or Supports Agreements (“POS Agreements”) to agencies in 
accordance with CCDDR’s mission, strategic planning objectives, and annual fiscal budget, and 
applicable Federal and Missouri laws. 

POLICY: 

I. General Information 

A. CCDDR is authorized by Sections 205.968 – 205.972 RSMo to serve persons 
with developmental disabilities, as defined in Sections 205.968 and 630.005 
RSMo.  The CCDDR Board of Directors (“Board”) may elect to directly provide 
programs or services for Camden County residents with developmental 
disabilities (“Eligible Persons”), contract with existing agencies to provide 
programs or services for Eligible Persons, or both.  CCDDR shall award public 
funds to agencies for programs and services that are used effectively, efficiently, 
and appropriately.   

B. The following general principals shall apply to all grants and POS Agreements 
awarded to agencies in serving Eligible Persons: 

1. Funding shall be appropriated for CCDDR’s fiscal year (calendar year) or 
for special projects.  Grants and POS Agreements are typically funded by 
CCDDR from Camden County property taxes received from the Camden 
County Treasurer or revenue from Targeted Case Management claims 
submitted to and paid by Medicaid.  The total amount of funds available is 
determined by calculating the estimated funds to be received in a stated 
fiscal (calendar) year less the total amount of funds needed to sustain 
CCDDR sponsored programs or services, operational reserves or other 
restricted fund accounts, Medicaid Waiver match commitments with the 
Department of Mental Health, Targeted Case Management expenses, 
administrative expenses, building expenses, and various other CCDDR 
operational expenses. 

2. CCDDR may be limited in the amounts, if any, it can award to agencies 
for any funding request. 

Policy Number: 
10 

Effective:  August 1, 2007 
Revised:  November 21, 2016 

Subject: Grants & Purchase of Services 
and/or Supports Agreements 



3. All agencies receiving a grant or a POS Agreement from CCDDR shall 
comply with all CCDDR funding Policies/Procedures and shall sign a 
funding agreement outlining the terms of CCDDR funding.  CCDDR 
reserves the right to establish the conditions and requirements of the 
funding agreement(s). 

4. CCDDR will not award grants or POS Agreements to assist agencies in 
retiring their existing debts, to supplant an existing financial effort of the 
agency, or to establish endowment funds.  All funds awarded by CCDDR 
must be utilized for a specific purpose in serving Eligible Persons in 
agreement with CCDDR’s mission and Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo. 

5. CCDDR shall only award grants or POS Agreements for services 
rendered/expenses incurred by an agency after the date of Board approval 
of the agency’s application. 

6. An agency that fails to perform in accordance with CCDDR’s funding 
agreement shall be considered to be in default of said funding agreement.  
Any agency’s ineffective, inefficient, or inappropriate use of awarded 
funds or a portion thereof shall be subject to a recapture of said funds. 

7. Applicants of grants or POS Agreements for partial funding of projects 
must demonstrate the availability and source of other funds for the 
development and/or continued operation of the proposed service or 
program. 

C. CCDDR may directly solicit, procure, or provide services and/or supports for 
Eligible Persons as deemed necessary. 

D. All agencies receiving funds from CCDDR are encouraged to attend the monthly 
Board meetings to discuss progress on programs funded by CCDDR and receive 
information on CCDDR activities and topics related to developmental disabilities. 

II. Annual Grants and POS Agreements 

A. Agencies requesting funds to sustain operations or continue to provide services 
and/or supports shall be required to submit a funding request annually to CCDDR.   

B. The annual funding request cycle will follow the following timelines: 

1. Funding requests for the next CCDDR fiscal (calendar) year are due to 
CCDDR no later than October 15th of the current fiscal (calendar) year.  
Acceptable delivery methods to CCDDR shall include delivery via email, 
United States Postal Service, third-party private service, or personal 
delivery. 

2. The CCDDR Executive Director shall review all annual funding requests 
and will make recommendations to the Board at the November or 



December Board meeting.  Certain circumstances may exist which require 
additional review by the Executive Director and/or the Board. 

3. The Board generally approves the preliminary annual budget for the next 
fiscal (calendar) year in November; however, the Board may re-convene if 
needed in December to approve a final budget.  No annual funding request 
shall be approved until the next fiscal (calendar) year budget is approved 
by the Board. 

C. Agreements for funds awarded prior to the end of the current fiscal (calendar) 
year for the following fiscal (calendar) year are typically signed no later than 
December 31st. 

1. If a decision about a funding request is made after December 31st, the 
funding agreement will be signed following any approval with the funds 
retroactive to January 1st. 

III. Special Grants and POS Agreements (New Program or One-Time Funds) 

A. CCDDR will review special funding requests (new program or one-time funding 
applications) in situations including, but not limited to: 

1. The health and/or safety of Eligible Persons is threatened; 

2. The health and/or safety of persons providing support services for Eligible 
Persons is threatened; 

3. Programs or services provided by an agency are threatened; 

4. Amounts originally appropriated for an approved program or service are 
insufficient due to unanticipated growth in the program or service; 

5. Unexpected/unanticipated funding opportunities arise; 

6. A situation arises which presents an immediate financial hardship for an 
agency that cannot wait until the next budget cycle;  

7. A new program, service, and/or support which will provide community 
inclusion, community employment, community transportation, housing, 
immediate care, or other services and/or supports which are not currently 
offered or improves the quality or environment of community living 
and/or an existing service and/or support; 

8. Funds for one-time expenses such as acquisition of property, renovations, 
or equipment that have a useful life of one (1) or more years; 

9. Funds for one-time expenses related to new construction of or renovation 
to existing buildings; or 



10. Funds for the purchase of vehicles utilized in transporting Eligible Persons 
for participation in programs or community inclusion when other State 
and/or Federal transportation funding resources have been exhausted. 

B. Special funding requests must be submitted to CCDDR’s Executive Director no 
less than 30 days prior to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.   

C. The CCDDR Executive Director shall review all special funding requests and will 
make recommendations to the Board at the next regularly scheduled Board 
meeting.   

D. CCDDR’s Executive Director and/or Board may request additional information, 
supporting documents, or other supportive information to support the special 
funding request before a decision is rendered. 

 

IV. Eligibility Criteria 

A. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR must utilize said funds to serve 
Eligible Persons.   

B. Eligible Persons participating in programs offered or receiving services and/or 
supports provided by agencies should be current or former clients of the 
Department of Mental Health, Division of Developmental Disabilities and/or 
CCDDR.  If not a former or current client of the Department of Mental Health, 
Division of Developmental Disabilities and/or CCDDR, an intake eligibility 
application and supporting documentation may be requested to support client 
eligibility. 

C. The Board may, at its sole discretion, impose limitations with respect to  
community inclusive programs and services such as programs to be administered 
and services to be provided.  Such limitations as determined by the Board may 
depend upon: the availability of funds; the appropriate, efficient, and effective use 
of funds; the needs of Eligible Persons to be served; and the needs within the 
community. 

V. Agencies Eligible for Grants/POS Agreements  

A. CCDDR funds are available to agencies which are serving, or will serve upon 
implementation of a program, service, and/or support, Eligible Persons.   

B. POS Agreements but not grants may be awarded to for-profit agencies, and shall 
be dependent upon the needs of Eligible Persons and the availability of not-for-
profit programs, services, and/or support agencies.   

C. CCDDR reserves the right to procure services and/or supports without a funding 
application or POS Agreement in instances involving Medicaid or Medicaid 



Waiver services and/or supports, where individual choice is a prerequisite, or in 
instances where the immediate procurement of such services and/or supports are 
deemed necessary. 

VI. Funding Application Requirements 

A. General Requirements: 

1. Agencies shall submit current proof of insurance coverage for all 
programs, services, and assets.  The agency shall maintain minimum 
insurance coverages as set forth in the CCDDR Funding Agreement.  
CCDDR shall be named as an additional insured on all liability insurance 
policies that cover the programs and services funded by CCDDR.  The 
agency shall also maintain blanket fidelity coverage in an amount equal to 
or greater than awarded funds from CCDDR for all persons handling said 
funds. 

2. Not-for-profit agencies shall be registered as a not-for-profit corporation 
in the State of Missouri and have a current Certificate of Good Standing 
from the Secretary of State’s office, provide a current 501(c)3 
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service, and provide a 
copy of the most recent 990 filed with the Internal Revenue Service 

a. If the agency has been in operation for less than two (2) 
agency fiscal years prior to the application for funds 
and the agency’s first fiscal year has not ended or the 
agency’s first fiscal year has ended but it has not been 
six (6) months since the end of the first fiscal year, the 
agency must submit the copy of the 990 by the end of 
the sixth (6th) month after the end of the agency’s fiscal 
year.   

3. For-profit agencies shall have a current Certificate of Good Standing from 
the Secretary of State’s office for the programs and/or 
services/supportsidentified in the application. 

4. If applicable, agencies must submit proof of good standing with regard to 
current licensure, certification, or accreditation from the appropriate 
Missouri and/or Federal authority having oversight responsibilities (i.e.  
DESE, DMH, etc.). 

5. Agencies must be in good standing with regard to the successful 
implementation of previous services, programs, or projects funded by 
CCDDR. 

6. Agencies must submit a business plan or detailed description of the 
program(s), service(s), project(s), etc. for which funds are to be used. 



7. Agencies must submit a copy of their current strategic plan, Bylaws, 
Articles of Incorporation, financial management policy, financial 
management procedures, and other policies and procedures when 
submitting an application for the first time. 

8. Agencies shall provide other documents as deemed necessary by CCDDR 
Executive Director and/or the Board. 

B. The annual funding application requirements are as follows: 

1. Agencies shall demonstrate fiscal viability by submitting:  

a. a current year-to-date detailed balance sheet;  

b. current year-to-date detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  
budgeted revenue and expenses for each program administered by 
the agency;  

c. current year-to-date detailed cash flow statement;  

d. detailed budget for the next 12 consecutive months or fiscal year 
for each program administered by the agency; and 

e. the annual funding application.   

2. Agencies that have been in operation for more than three (3) agency fiscal 
years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the 
documents requested in Subsection (1): 

a. the previous two agency fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheets;  

b. detailed statements of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue 
and expenses for each program administered by the agency; 

c.  detailed cash flow statements; and 

d. third-party audit reports with the funding application.   

3. Agencies that have been in operation for less than three (3) agency fiscal 
years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the 
documents requested in Subsection (1):  

a. the agency’s previous fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheet:  

b. detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue 
and expenses for each program administered by the agency;  

c. detailed cash flow statement; and 



d. third-party audit report with the funding application.   

4. Agencies that have been in operation for less than two (2) agency fiscal 
years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the 
documents requested in Publication (1): 

a. a copy of the previous fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheet;  

b. detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue 
and expenses for each program administered by the agency;  

c. detailed cash flow statement; and 

d. third-party audit report within six (6) months after the end of the 
agency’s previous fiscal year if the first fiscal year has not ended at 
the time of the funding application, if the agency’s first fiscal year 
has ended but it has not been six (6) months since the end of the 
first fiscal year, the agency must submit the third-party audit report 
by the end of the sixth (6th) month after the end of the agency’s 
fiscal year. 

C. The special funding application requirements are as follows: 

1. For new program, service, and/or support applications, agencies shall 
provide detailed information about the program, service, and/or support 
including, but not limited to: 

a. a business and/or strategic plan; 

b. projected budget; 

c. anticipated outcomes; 

d. summary of how CCDDR funds will be utilized in program or 
service development identified in the application; and 

e. current or past agency financial reports (if applicable). 

 

2. For operational shortfall, capital improvement, equipment purchase, new 
construction, renovation, vehicle acquisition, or health and safety related 
applications, agencies shall provide detailed information about the 
circumstances including, but not limited to: 

a. a business and/or strategic plan;  

b. projected budget; 



c. anticipated outcomes; 

d.  summary of how CCDDR funds will be utilized; and 

e. current or past agency financial reports (if applicable). 

VII. Programs, Services, and/or Supports Eligible for Funding 

A. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR must utilize the funds for programs, 
services, and/or supports for Eligible Persons including, but not limited to the 
following: 

1. Sheltered employment programs, services, and/or supports; 

2. Community employment programs, services, and/or supports; 

3. Pre-vocational programs, services, and/or supports; 

4. Immediate care programs, services, and/or supports; 

5. Community inclusion programs, services, and/or supports; 

6. Residential programs, services, and/or supports; and 

7. “Related” programs, services, and/or supports defined as: 

a. Programs designed toward enabling an Eligible Person to progress 
toward normal living and/or to develop his or her capacity, 
performance, or relationships with other persons; 

b. Programs which provide services related to a place of residence or 
social centers for Eligible Persons; or 

c. Programs which provide a controlled environment. 

B. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR which fall within the area of “related” 
programs, services, and/or supports will be asked to show how the program, 
service, and/or support qualifies under the above definition. 

C. The Board shall, at its discretion, determine if the program, service, and/or 
support qualifies when evaluating all applications. 

 

 



VIII. Funding Categories 

A. Annual and Special Funding 

1. Grants 

a. CCDDR may award grants to sustain existing agency operations 
and/or to continue providing programs, services, and/or supports to 
Eligible Persons.   

b. Grants may be utilized for direct operational costs, such as 
personnel, fringe benefits, supplies, travel, professional fees, etc.  

c. A percentage of indirect/overhead costs may also be funded.   

d. All funding will be based on program specific measures. 

2. POS Agreements 

a. POS Agreements with agencies shall provide direct services and/or 
supports for Eligible Persons during a specified period of time.   

b. A “unit” of service and a “rate per unit” is determined and 
approved by the Board.   

c. The agency then invoices CCDDR for the number of “units” 
provided by the agency. 

B. Special Funding 

1. New Programs 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants or POS Agreements for new 
programs.   

b. Criteria to be used to review and evaluate all applications for new 
programs, services, and/or supports include, but is not limited to: 

i. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 
support has been identified by CCDDR as a need based 
upon needs survey results, waiting list data, or other viable 
sources; 

ii. The extent to which other Federal, State, and local agencies 
or funding sources are mandated to fund the proposed new 
program, service, and/or support; 

iii. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 
support will contribute to the advancement of and/or 



improvement of promoting Eligible Persons to progress 
toward normal living; 

iv. The availability of CCDDR revenues to sustain the new 
program, service, and/or support on an on-going basis; 

v. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 
support falls within Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo in 
terms of eligible services to be funded; 

vi. The extent to which the estimated cost for the new 
program, service, and/or support is reasonable and is cost-
effective; 

vii. The extent to which other available revenue sources have 
been investigated and accessed by the agency requesting 
CCDDR funds; 

viii. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 
support addresses the needs of Eligible Persons; 

ix. The extent to which the agency is: certified or accredited by 
State and national bodies; program, service, or support 
personnel are well qualified by training and/or experience 
for their roles; and the applicant agency has adequate 
facilities and personnel; 

x. The extent to which, insofar as practicable, the proposed 
program, service, and/or support, if well executed, is 
capable of attaining the proposed outcomes and goals;  

xi. The strength of the program, service, and/or support plan 
for evaluation in terms of meeting stated outcomes/goals; 
and 

xii. The agency’s historical performance in other programs, 
services, and/or supports funded by CCDDR (if applicable) 
or historical performance in other programs, services, 
and/or supports not funded by CCDDR (references may be 
requested). 

c. CCDDR will evaluate each one-time grant application as it relates 
to program feasibility or viability and its impact on Eligible 
Persons participating in the program. 

 

 



2. Construction/Renovation Projects & Purchases of Property 

a. All new construction projects and renovation projects require 
development of uniform specifications for the work to be done, 
adherence to this Policy, adherence to CCDDR Procurement 
Policy #31, adherence to the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law when 
applicable, and adherence to all applicable Federal, Missouri, and 
local laws.   

b. The following information shall be submitted with the agency’s 
grant application when requesting funding for new construction, 
property purchase, or renovation projects: 

i. Description of the project and benefits to persons served; 

ii. Projected timeline for initiation and completion of project; 

iii. Business plan and how proposed property acquisition, 
construction, or renovation will enhance the agency’s 
business operations and/or mission in serving Eligible 
Persons; 

iv. Land site and value (for proposed purchases of property 
that CCDDR is to fund, an Independent Appraisal of the 
property from a certified appraiser is required); 

v. Architectural plans(if applicable); and 

vi. Itemized cost breakdown for the entire project. 

c. For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, 
constructed, or renovated exclusively with CCDDR funds, the 
Board reserves the right to retain ownership of the property and 
subsequently lease the property to the agency for a specific 
purpose, hold recorded interest in title to the property, or be 
recorded as the first lien-holder.   

d. For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, 
constructed, or renovated which are partially funded by CCDDR 
funds, the Board reserves the right to hold recorded interest in title 
to the property or be recorded as a lien-holder.   

e. Restricted covenants shall be recorded for the agency’s use of 
CCDDR funds to: purchase property; purchase, construct, or 
renovate buildings; or purchase, construct, or renovate of 
residential facilities. 

 



3. Vehicle Purchases 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants to enable agencies to: 

i. improve or replace their existing fleet of vehicles;  

ii. purchase lift equipment or safety equipment, such as 
restraints; or  

iii. to purchase new vehicles as part of an expansion of 
transportation services.   

b. All vehicle purchases require adherence to this Policy, adherence 
to CCDDR Procurement Policy #31, applicable sections contained 
within CCDDR Transportation Policy #36 as outlined in the 
Funding Agreement, and adherence to all applicable Federal, 
Missouri, and local laws 

i. Agency purchases of vehicles at the 
State/Federal Surplus warehouse in Jefferson 
City or through the MoDOT Section 
5309/5310/5311 program are not subject to the 
conditions outlined in CCDDR Procurement 
Policy #31.   

c. For vehicles purchased entirely with CCDDR funds, the vehicle 
must be titled with CCDDR listed as first lien-holder, and CCDDR 
will physically hold title for the duration of the vehicle’s service. 

d. Agencies are required to provide CCDDR with vehicle serial 
numbers and other appropriate identifying information. 

e. The vehicle must be used in transporting Eligible Persons.   

f. Agencies must submit a request in writing for CCDDR’s 
permission to dispose of, transfer, or sell a vehicle purchased with 
CCDDR funds. 

i. CCDDR reserves the authority to determine a reasonable 
sale price and shall use the wholesale value of the vehicle 
as specified in The Official Bus Blue Book by Bus 
Solutions, in consideration with straight-line depreciation 
methods.   

ii. CCDDR reserves the right to retain proceeds from sales of 
vehicles purchased exclusively with CCDDR funds. 



iii. Where vehicles have been partially purchased with Federal 
or MoDOT funds (Section 5309/5310/5311), Federal or 
MoDOT property management standards shall prevail, with 
remittance of the sale price to the CCDDR equal to 
CCDDR’s percentage match (typically 20%). 

g. CCDDR will not provide funding to replace vehicles unless the 
odometer reading of the vehicle to be replaced is above 100,000 
miles. 

4. Operational Shortfall 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants for program specific 
operational shortfalls, such as unanticipated expenses incurred as a 
result of changes in health and safety compliance standards, 
replacement or repairs of necessary equipment, or other unforeseen 
and uncontrollable circumstances affecting the successful 
operation of a program.   

b. Operational shortfalls will be heavily scrutinized by the Board.   

c. Mismanagement or management errors will not be considered 
legitimate reasons for one-time grant requests. 

5. Health and Safety 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants to an agency if the health 
and safety of an Eligible Person/Persons is/are threatened, and the 
agency is financially unable to accommodate a remedy to the 
health and safety issue.   

b. Health and safety concerns will be heavily scrutinized by the 
Board.   

c. If it has been determined mismanagement or management errors 
are the reason for the health and safety issue, additional 
investigatory authorities may be notified and continued funding of 
any other CCDDR funded agency program will be reviewed and 
reconsidered immediately. 

IX. Monitoring of Funds Utilization 

A. All agencies receiving annual funding from CCDDR for the on-going sustainment 
of programs, services, and/or supports shall provide a verifiable, detailed 
accounting of funds utilized as identified in the funding agreement(s). 

B. All agencies receiving special funding from CCDDR must submit copies of actual 
invoices and checks for payment of the invoices for approved expenditures.   



C. For operational, operational shortfall, new program, and/or other special project 
or program funding, a verifiable, detailed accounting of how the funds were 
utilized is required.   

D. If the agency requests CCDDR to make a direct payment to the supplier or 
manufacturer rather than being remunerated by CCDDR, an invoice from the 
supplier or manufacturer for all approved expenditures is needed. 

E. Purchase of Assets 

1. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets (equipment, 
furnishings, vehicles, property, etc.) in excess of $1,000 for items with a 
useful life of over 1 year shall complete an asset inventory report annually 
for the depreciable period applicable to the item following the award. 

2. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets shall maintain a loss 
control/risk management system to prevent damage or theft of such items.   

3. Any damage or theft of an asset in excess of $1,000 purchased with 
CCDDR funds shall be properly investigated, with the appropriate 
reports/findings submitted for review to the Board. 

4. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets in excess of $1,000 
shall maintain adequate property insurance coverage for said items, and 
shall furnish CCDDR with evidence of insurance annually for all such 
capital items. 

5. If purchased assets are found not to be used during a six-month 
consecutive period of time during the first three years of ownership, said 
items shall be made available to CCDDR for reassignment to another 
agency, to CCDDR for its own uses, or for resale by CCDDR, with 
proceeds returning to CCDDR. 

6. If purchased assets are found not to be used for or by Eligible Persons, the 
agency shall repay CCDDR the undepreciated or market value of said 
items or make the items available to CCDDR for reassignment to another 
agency. 

7. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of an asset in excess of $1,000 
shall not sell, trade, or dispose of the item within a three-year period of 
time after the award unless prior approval has been obtained from 
CCDDR.  If prior approval is not obtained, the agency shall repay 
CCDDR for the funding amount used to purchase the asset. 

8. All purchased assets shall be depreciated in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The agency shall be expected to establish 
and fund a depreciation reserve account to replace the item when this 
becomes necessary. 



F. Purchase of Property 

1. If CCDDR grants funds for the purchase of real property and the agency 
sells, trades, or ceases to use the property for the purposes indicated in its 
original proposal and/or grant application within five years from the date 
of being awarded funds, all funds disbursed in the project shall be 
reimbursed to CCDDR.   

a. If the agency continues to serve Eligible Persons, but uses the 
property for a different purpose than in the original proposal, a 
request must first be made in writing to the Board to utilize the 
property in a different manner.   

b. If the request is denied, the agency shall repay CCDDR for the 
funding amount used to purchase the real property. 

2. For all purchases of personal property in excess of $5,000.00, the agency 
shall grant to CCDDR a security interest in the property.   

a. CCDDR will execute a security agreement via UCC Financing 
Statement (UCC-1) with the Secretary of State’s office.   

b. The security agreement shall be in effect for 10 years or until 
property is disposed of. 

X.  Monitoring Agencies Receiving Funds 

A. As a publicly-supported entity, CCDDR places a premium on the accountability 
of its funds.  This responsibility extends to those agencies funded by CCDDR.   

B. Agencies will be required to provide CCDDR with a full financial disclosure of 
all operations. 

C. Agencies shall establish internal controls, systems, and procedures for monitoring 
the fiscal position of their agency and the use of CCDDR funds. 

D. Agencies’ financial management controls and record-keeping shall be in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

E. All agencies that have funding agreements with CCDDR shall submit an 
organization-wide independent audit to CCDDR conducted by a Certified Public 
Accountant following Generally Accepted Auditing Standards for the period in 
which the funding was received.   

1. If this funding extends into a subsequent fiscal year(s) for the agency, a 
subsequent audit(s) will be required.   



2. The audit document shall include the auditor’s Management Report and 
comments on compliance with accounting standards and internal controls.   

3. The audit is due in the CCDDR office within six (6) months of the close of 
the agency’s fiscal year.   

4. The DESE Audit Analysis shall accompany the audit report for sheltered 
employment services.   

5. Copies of audits by any regulatory entity must also be submitted to 
CCDDR within thirty (30) days of the agency’s receipt of the completed 
audit report from the regulatory entity. 

6. Agencies receiving $10,000 or less annually or in a single, program 
specific grant which carries no ongoing funding obligation by CCDDR 
may request an exception to the audit requirement.   

i. This audit exception request must be submitted to CCDDR 
in writing with the grant application.   

ii. Each audit exception request will be considered on a case-
by-case basis, and each consideration will be made based 
on the funding application circumstances. 

iii. If a waiver is granted, the exempted agency shall submit 
year-end financial statements or program specific financial 
statements signed by their board treasurer, Certified Public 
Accountant, or authorized designee.   

F. Any modifications or changes to the strategic plan, Bylaws, Articles of 
Incorporation, policies, and procedures adopted by the agency during the term 
identified in the funding agreement must be submitted to CCDDR. 

G. Agencies will be required to comply with all terms and conditions set forth in the 
funding agreement(s). 

H.  CCDDR reserves the right to conduct periodic site visits of funded programs, 
services, and/or supports.   

I. CCDDR may, at its own costs, procure the services of third parties to conduct 
assessments, audits, inspections, etc. of programs, services, supports, and/or 
facilities funded by CCDDR funds. 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-45  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #29 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions and creates new Bylaws, 
policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain 
compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #29, 
Restricted and Unrestricted Funds. 
 
2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #29 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2016-45 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 5 
 

 
PURPOSE: 
 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) believes that sound 
financial management principles require that sufficient funds be retained by CCDDR to 
provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial base, CCDDR 
needs to maintain a Fund Balance sufficient to fund all cash flows of CCDDR for a 
certain period of time; to mitigate potential fluctuations in annual property tax revenues; 
to establish the designation of Targeted Case Management program revenue; to provide 
financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue shortfalls of an 
emergency nature; and to provide funds for all existing agency obligations. 

 

 
The purpose of this policy is to specify the size and composition of CCDDR’s restricted 
and unrestricted funds and to identify requirements for use and replenishment of any fund 
balances. 

 
 
DEFINITIONS: 

 
Restricted Funds 
 
Fund balances that are set aside for planned actions stated by the Board.   Stated restrictions can 
be altered at CCDDR Board meetings. 

 

 
Unrestricted Funds 
 
Fund balances that have not been set aside for planned actions by the Board.  These fund balances 
may be available for appropriation at the Board’s discretion or can be converted to a restricted 
fund at CCDDR Board meetings. 

 

 
Operational Funds 
 
Restricted funds designated for the Fiscal operation expenses identified in the Board-approved 
Fiscal Year Budget. 
 

Policy Number: 
29 

Effective: April 20, 2009 
Revised: November 21, 2016 

 
Subject: Restricted and Unrestricted Funds 



Page 2 of 5 
 

Operational Reserves Fund 

 
Restricted fund designated for fiscal cash liquidity purposes (i.e. fiscal reserve) that will 
provide for sufficient cash flow to meet the agency’s emergency or sustainable cash-flow 
needs during times of revenue shortfalls and/or unanticipated expenditures. Operational 
Reserve funds guard against the unpredictability of Federal or state policy changes, Federal or 
state litigation, and/or volatility in the environment within which Federal, state, and/or local 
programs operate.  The fund balance target level for each program shall be equal to 25% of the 
agency’s annual revenues for each program; however, the Board may establish an amount 
more or less in an annual budget prior to the beginning of an upcoming fiscal year, which will 
be dependent upon the reasonable expectation of realized or projected income, expenses, 
and/or funds available. 
 

Sheltered Workshop Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for the County workshop that is used to offset the workshop’s fiscal 
operational shortfalls (if any). 
 
Children’s Program Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for agencies offering programs for developmentally disabled children. 
 
Medicaid Match Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for reimbursement to the Department of Mental Health for costs of 
services provided in the Partner for Hope Waiver, Community Waiver, Comprehensive Waiver, 
Lopez Waiver, and other Waiver programs. 
 

 
Housing Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for qualifying housing needs. 
 

 
Transportation Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for qualifying transportation needs. 
 

 
Community Employment Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for qualifying community employment needs. 
 
Special Needs Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for qualifying needs that would not otherwise be provided or funded by 
another resource or program. 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 

New Programs Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for qualifying needs of proposed new programs or new programs’ start-
up costs. 
 

 
Sponsorships Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for sponsoring service costs for qualifying clients to participate in 
special needs camps or other related recreational activities; for charitable purchases or costs on 
behalf of qualifying clients; for charitable donations made on behalf of or for the benefit of 
qualifying clients; or for other sponsorship services or activities which will be in the best interest 
of or benefit qualifying clients. 
 
Building/Remodeling/Expansion Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for the cost to purchase new real estate and buildings; to construct, 
remodel, remove, rebuild, or reconstruct new buildings or property improvements; to construct, 
remodel, remove, rebuild, or reconstruct mechanical, HVAC, plumbing, structural, or electrical 
systems to buildings or property improvements; and to offset expenses related to Agency 
expansion efforts. 
 
Legal Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for costs related to legal counsel, court costs, or other related 
expenses. 
 

TCM Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for costs or shortfalls related to the Targeted Case Management 
Program. 
 
Community Resource Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for costs or expenses related to supports, services, and/or 
program/project development for successful community inclusion and/or access to the community.  
 
Other Fund 
 
Restricted fund designated for uncategorized expenses, asset expenses, or to offset asset values less 
depreciation. 
 

 
Qualifying Needs 
 
Qualifying needs are needs pertaining to the classification of the designated fund as defined by the 
Board at the time of the allocation of the need. 



Page 4 of 5 
 

POLICY: 

 
I. Uses 

 

 
A. Designated Restricted Fund Balance 

 
CCDDR will maintain fund balance designations for fiscal cash liquidity purposes. 
The amounts of the fund balances shall be established by the Board through 
approval of the Fiscal Year Budget and may be modified from time to time as needs 
change throughout the Fiscal Year. 
 

B. Designated Unrestricted Fund Balance 
 
Fund balance designations not otherwise restricted as required above represent 
balances available for appropriation at the discretion of the Board for use in Fiscal 
Year operations. The Board will make every effort to use these unrestricted funds 
for the following purposes (listed in order of priority): 

 
 

• For use in meeting contingency/emergency expenditures that are unanticipated. 
• Increase Designated Restricted Fund Balances as deemed necessary. 
• For use in meeting capital improvement or equipment replacement needs as 

deemed necessary by the board. 
• Use as beginning cash balance in support of the Board-approved annual budget. 

 

 
The CCDDR Board recognizes that any such unrestricted funds should be appropriated for 
Fiscal Year operational costs as they represent current or prior year surpluses that may or 
may not materialize in subsequent fiscal years. In developing the annual budget, the 
Executive Director shall identify any funds proposed to be taken from unrestricted fund 
balances needed to balance the budget, which may be a result of time-limited or one-time 
expenditures contained in the annual budget. 

 

 
II. Monitoring and Reporting 

 
The CCDDR monthly financial statements shall identify the status of the fund balance(s) within 
this policy and shall be used in conjunction with the development of an annual budget. In the 
annual Budget Summary to the Board completed in developing the annual budget, the 
Executive Director shall identify all anticipated restricted and unrestricted funds available the 
following year, and any recommendations for use of said funds shall be presented to the Board 
in this report. 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

III. Replenishment of the Operational Reserves Fund Balance 
 
Should the Operational Reserves Fund Balance amount fall below the 25% targeted level or 
fiscal year budgeted amount, the Board must approve and adopt a plan to restore this balance 
to the target level within 24 months. If restoration of the Operational Reserve Fund cannot be 
accomplished within such period without severe hardship to the Board, then the Board will 
establish a different time period. 

 

 
IV. Investment of Restricted and Unrestricted Funds 

 
All designated fund balances of CCDDR may be invested at the Board’s discretion according 
to CCDDR’s Investment Policy. 

 
 
REFERENCES: 
 
• CARF Standards Manual 
• Revised MO Statutes 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-46  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF MOU – OZARKS RURAL HEALTH NETWORK  

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 
Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 
administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 
(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
promotes collaboration and partnership with other agencies in an effort to enhance services, supports, and 
positive outcomes for its clients and the community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Ozark Rural 
Health Network (OHRN) is a collaborative coordination project with multiple agencies partnering to 
expand and enhance community resources, services, supports, and positive outcomes for Board clients and 
the community. 
 
2.  That the Board acknowledges Central Ozarks Medical Center is coordinating an initiative to develop 
the ORHN and authorizes the Executive Director to sign and execute a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) to initiate collaborative participation with other local support/service agencies and formalize the 
ORHN creation with the hopes of establishing an eventual stand-alone, not-for-profit organization. 
 
3.  That the Board recognizes the MOU will include the Board’s participation and/or a position on the 
ORHN Board of Directors and/or committees, workgroups, and other subgroups and authorizes the 
Executive Director to act as the Board’s representative.   
 
4.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2016-46 

 
 



MEMORANUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Ozarks Rural Health Network 

 
 
Statement of Purpose 
The organizing purpose of the Ozarks Rural Health Network (ORHN) is to create a coordinated and 
integrated network that addresses social determinants of health in the Missouri Ozarks region.  
 
The organizing members of ORHN founded the network in response to needs identified through 
previous collaborative activities, the results of individual organizational and collective community needs 
assessments, and joint planning activities that have demonstrated an evident need to address social 
determinants of health in our region.   
 
The mission of the Network is to improve the overall health and wellness of the Ozarks region by 
addressing underlying social determinants of health.  
 
Operating Principles 
In order to maximize the individual and regional impact of its efforts, the operating principles of the 
Ozarks Rural Health Network are: collaboration, integration, and quality.  ORHN focuses on: 
 
Collaborative development of local resources and efforts to improve the health and well‐being of the 
residents of the Ozarks region that minimize the duplication of services; 
 
Integrated efforts that transcend existing systems to coordinate development and implementation of 
appropriate and effective services that are unavailable or insufficient in the region;  
 
Quality outcomes that result from the use of data and best practices to inform planning, decision‐
making, and evaluation of Network programs and activities. 
 
This memorandum formalizes the collaboration between the Network partners signing this agreement 
in support of the development of the Ozarks Rural Health Network.  This agreement supports each 
organization’s desire to collaboratively address social determinants of health in our region.  The 
information contained herein describes the role of each entity in the collaboration and the scope of 
services offered.   
 
Membership 
The founding members of the Network include representation from primary health care, public health, 
hospitals and specialty health care providers, and social service agencies in the Ozarks region. 
Membership is open to organizations and agencies providing health care or social services in the nine‐
county region served by existing Network members. New members must be approved by the existing 
membership.  
 
Each Network member organization shall designate an individual from the leadership team of that 
organization to represent the member organization on the Network Board of Directors, with authority to 
represent the member organization in decision‐making.  
 
Organizations that are not seeking network membership or are not yet network members may 
participate in network initiatives, programs, and activities with the approval of the membership. 
 
 



Memorandum of Understanding 
Ozarks Rural Health Network 

 

 

Officers and Terms 
Officers for the Network will include a Chair, Vice‐chair, and Secretary/Treasurer to be elected by the 
members. The term of network officers shall be two years, with officers named through a vote of the 
network membership. Each member organization or agency shall have one vote in network decision‐
making.  
 
Committees 
Committees shall be named as necessary to focus on specific areas of network activity or specific 
functions of the network. Committees shall serve in an advisory role to the full network membership, 
and shall not have decision‐making authority. 
 
Staff and Resources 
Staff must consist at a minimum of a 1.0 FTE network director, who shall be the sole employee of the 
network board, with delegated responsibilities from the board. The network director may create 
additional positions supervised by the network director as necessary with board approval.  
 
Frequency of Meetings 
Network meetings will occur at least on a bimonthly basis (every other month), with more frequent 
meetings as necessary. Committee and full membership meetings will make use of available information 
technology, so that members who are not able to attend in person may attend through a tele‐meeting 
format. Member organizations must be present in person at the annual meeting of the board, to be held 
in May of each year.  
 
Acknowledgement of Responsibilities 
 
My agency/organization understands the requirements and responsibilities of network membership. 
These include: 
 

 Designating an organization representative with decision making authority for membership on 
the Ozarks Rural Health Network Board to provide leadership on network health priorities and 
practices. 

 Collaborating with Network partners to implement the activities outlined in the Ozarks Rural 
Health Network Work Plan. 

 Participating with Network members to create an independent nonprofit organization 
(Network) and governance structure that supports the mission of the Network. 

 Distributing information about the Network and providing services, education and assistance to 
the target population. 

 



Memorandum of Understanding 
Ozarks Rural Health Network 

 

 

 
   

Understanding 
This agreement represents the complete understanding of the members.  Any amendments to this 
agreement shall be in writing and signed by all parties.  This agreement will take effect on November 
28, 2016. Each party’s participation in this agreement will continue unless terminated by that party.  
Any party may terminate their individual participation in this agreement by giving 30 days written 
notice to the Network Board. 
 
By signing below, I affirm my organization’s participation in the Ozarks Rural Health Network. 
 
 
     

Organization Name 
 
 

  Organization EIN 

Address 
 
 

   

Signature 
 
 

  Date 

Name of Signatory 
 

  Title of Signatory 
 
 

 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-47  
 

NEW POLICY 42 – ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. 
voters of the Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, 
property, affairs, administrative control, and management to rest solely with the 
Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental 
Disability Resources) reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job 
descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain 
effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental 
Disability Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need 
to create Policy Number 42, Electronic Signatures. 
 
2.  That the Board hereby adopts Policy 42 as presented in Attachment “A” hereto. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been 
approved by a majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution 
shall remain in effect until otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” 
Resolution 2016-47 

 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
Federal and state laws authorize the acceptance of electronic signatures as legal and enforceable 
for most purposes.  Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) recognizes 
this general standard as well as the increased operational efficiency gained from conducting 
transactions electronically.  This policy authorizes the use of electronic signatures to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, using methods that are secure and practical. 
 
This policy applies to all members of CCDDR, including Board members and employees.  This 
policy does not mandate the use of an electronic signature or otherwise limit the right of a party 
to conduct a transaction on paper, nor does it apply to any situation where a written signature is 
required by law.  This policy does not require a specific method for acceptance of an electronic 
signature, but authorizes implementation of any method that provides an appropriate level of 
authentication assurance.  
 
POLICY: 
 
When a signature is required, an electronic signature will meet the requirement, and will be 
accepted as legally binding and equivalent to a handwritten signature.  Individuals who falsify an 
electronic signature are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment and criminal prosecution under applicable federal and state laws.  Individuals are 
required to report any suspect or fraudulent activities related to electronic signatures 
immediately. 
This policy complements – but does not replace – the Board’s current policies, manuals, and 
Bylaws. 
 
 
REFERENCES: 
 
• DMH/Division of DD Support Coordination Manual 
• DMH/Division of DD Directive 1.060 
• DMH/Division of DD Guideline 22 

Policy Number:  
42 

Effective Date:  November 21st, 2016 
Revised: N/A 

 
Subject: Electronic Signatures 

 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	October 17th, 2016 OPEN SESSION Minutes
	Cover Page to CLC Monthly Report
	CLC Monthly Report
	Cover Page to LAI Monthly Report
	LAI Monthly Report
	Cover Page to Support Coordination Report
	Support Coordination Report
	Cover Page to CARF Report Medicaid Eligible Clients
	TCM CARF Report
	Cover Page to CARF Report Medicaid Ineligible Clients
	CCDDR CARF Report
	Cover Page to Agency Economic Report
	Agency Economic Report
	Cover Page to CC Statement
	SeptemberCreditCard
	Cover Page to Resolutions
	Resolution 2016-41
	Resolution 2016-41 Attachment A
	Resolution 2016-42
	Resolution 2016-42 Attachment A
	Resolution 2016-43
	Resolution 2016-43 Attachment A
	Resolution 2016-44
	Resolution 2016-44 Attachment A
	I. General Information
	A. CCDDR is authorized by Sections 205.968 – 205.972 RSMo to serve persons with developmental disabilities, as defined in Sections 205.968 and 630.005 RSMo.  The CCDDR Board of Directors (“Board”) may elect to directly provide programs or services for Camden County residents with developmental disabilities (“Eligible Persons”), contract with existing agencies to provide programs or services for Eligible Persons, or both.  CCDDR shall award public funds to agencies for programs and services that are used effectively, efficiently, and appropriately.  
	B. The following general principals shall apply to all grants and POS Agreements awarded to agencies in serving Eligible Persons:
	1. Funding shall be appropriated for CCDDR’s fiscal year (calendar year) or for special projects.  Grants and POS Agreements are typically funded by CCDDR from Camden County property taxes received from the Camden County Treasurer or revenue from Targeted Case Management claims submitted to and paid by Medicaid.  The total amount of funds available is determined by calculating the estimated funds to be received in a stated fiscal (calendar) year less the total amount of funds needed to sustain CCDDR sponsored programs or services, operational reserves or other restricted fund accounts, Medicaid Waiver match commitments with the Department of Mental Health, Targeted Case Management expenses, administrative expenses, building expenses, and various other CCDDR operational expenses.
	2. CCDDR may be limited in the amounts, if any, it can award to agencies for any funding request.
	3. All agencies receiving a grant or a POS Agreement from CCDDR shall comply with all CCDDR funding Policies/Procedures and shall sign a funding agreement outlining the terms of CCDDR funding.  CCDDR reserves the right to establish the conditions and requirements of the funding agreement(s).
	4. CCDDR will not award grants or POS Agreements to assist agencies in retiring their existing debts, to supplant an existing financial effort of the agency, or to establish endowment funds.  All funds awarded by CCDDR must be utilized for a specific purpose in serving Eligible Persons in agreement with CCDDR’s mission and Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo.
	5. CCDDR shall only award grants or POS Agreements for services rendered/expenses incurred by an agency after the date of Board approval of the agency’s application.
	6. An agency that fails to perform in accordance with CCDDR’s funding agreement shall be considered to be in default of said funding agreement.  Any agency’s ineffective, inefficient, or inappropriate use of awarded funds or a portion thereof shall be subject to a recapture of said funds.
	7. Applicants of grants or POS Agreements for partial funding of projects must demonstrate the availability and source of other funds for the development and/or continued operation of the proposed service or program.

	C. CCDDR may directly solicit, procure, or provide services and/or supports for Eligible Persons as deemed necessary.
	D. All agencies receiving funds from CCDDR are encouraged to attend the monthly Board meetings to discuss progress on programs funded by CCDDR and receive information on CCDDR activities and topics related to developmental disabilities.

	II. Annual Grants and POS Agreements
	A. Agencies requesting funds to sustain operations or continue to provide services and/or supports shall be required to submit a funding request annually to CCDDR.  
	B. The annual funding request cycle will follow the following timelines:
	1. Funding requests for the next CCDDR fiscal (calendar) year are due to CCDDR no later than October 15th of the current fiscal (calendar) year.  Acceptable delivery methods to CCDDR shall include delivery via email, United States Postal Service, third-party private service, or personal delivery.
	2. The CCDDR Executive Director shall review all annual funding requests and will make recommendations to the Board at the November or December Board meeting.  Certain circumstances may exist which require additional review by the Executive Director and/or the Board.
	3. The Board generally approves the preliminary annual budget for the next fiscal (calendar) year in November; however, the Board may re-convene if needed in December to approve a final budget.  No annual funding request shall be approved until the next fiscal (calendar) year budget is approved by the Board.

	C. Agreements for funds awarded prior to the end of the current fiscal (calendar) year for the following fiscal (calendar) year are typically signed no later than December 31st.
	1. If a decision about a funding request is made after December 31st, the funding agreement will be signed following any approval with the funds retroactive to January 1st.


	III. Special Grants and POS Agreements (New Program or One-Time Funds)
	A. CCDDR will review special funding requests (new program or one-time funding applications) in situations including, but not limited to:
	1. The health and/or safety of Eligible Persons is threatened;
	2. The health and/or safety of persons providing support services for Eligible Persons is threatened;
	3. Programs or services provided by an agency are threatened;
	4. Amounts originally appropriated for an approved program or service are insufficient due to unanticipated growth in the program or service;
	5. Unexpected/unanticipated funding opportunities arise;
	6. A situation arises which presents an immediate financial hardship for an agency that cannot wait until the next budget cycle; 
	7. A new program, service, and/or support which will provide community inclusion, community employment, community transportation, housing, immediate care, or other services and/or supports which are not currently offered or improves the quality or environment of community living and/or an existing service and/or support;
	8. Funds for one-time expenses such as acquisition of property, renovations, or equipment that have a useful life of one (1) or more years;
	9. Funds for one-time expenses related to new construction of or renovation to existing buildings; or
	10. Funds for the purchase of vehicles utilized in transporting Eligible Persons for participation in programs or community inclusion when other State and/or Federal transportation funding resources have been exhausted.

	B. Special funding requests must be submitted to CCDDR’s Executive Director no less than 30 days prior to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.  
	C. The CCDDR Executive Director shall review all special funding requests and will make recommendations to the Board at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.  
	D. CCDDR’s Executive Director and/or Board may request additional information, supporting documents, or other supportive information to support the special funding request before a decision is rendered.

	IV. Eligibility Criteria
	A. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR must utilize said funds to serve Eligible Persons.  
	B. Eligible Persons participating in programs offered or receiving services and/or supports provided by agencies should be current or former clients of the Department of Mental Health, Division of Developmental Disabilities and/or CCDDR.  If not a former or current client of the Department of Mental Health, Division of Developmental Disabilities and/or CCDDR, an intake eligibility application and supporting documentation may be requested to support client eligibility.
	C. The Board may, at its sole discretion, impose limitations with respect to  community inclusive programs and services such as programs to be administered and services to be provided.  Such limitations as determined by the Board may depend upon: the availability of funds; the appropriate, efficient, and effective use of funds; the needs of Eligible Persons to be served; and the needs within the community.

	V. Agencies Eligible for Grants/POS Agreements 
	A. CCDDR funds are available to agencies which are serving, or will serve upon implementation of a program, service, and/or support, Eligible Persons.  
	B. POS Agreements but not grants may be awarded to for-profit agencies, and shall be dependent upon the needs of Eligible Persons and the availability of not-for-profit programs, services, and/or support agencies.  
	C. CCDDR reserves the right to procure services and/or supports without a funding application or POS Agreement in instances involving Medicaid or Medicaid Waiver services and/or supports, where individual choice is a prerequisite, or in instances where the immediate procurement of such services and/or supports are deemed necessary.

	VI. Funding Application Requirements
	A. General Requirements:
	1. Agencies shall submit current proof of insurance coverage for all programs, services, and assets.  The agency shall maintain minimum insurance coverages as set forth in the CCDDR Funding Agreement.  CCDDR shall be named as an additional insured on all liability insurance policies that cover the programs and services funded by CCDDR.  The agency shall also maintain blanket fidelity coverage in an amount equal to or greater than awarded funds from CCDDR for all persons handling said funds.
	2. Not-for-profit agencies shall be registered as a not-for-profit corporation in the State of Missouri and have a current Certificate of Good Standing from the Secretary of State’s office, provide a current 501(c)3 determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service, and provide a copy of the most recent 990 filed with the Internal Revenue Service
	a. If the agency has been in operation for less than two (2) agency fiscal years prior to the application for funds and the agency’s first fiscal year has not ended or the agency’s first fiscal year has ended but it has not been six (6) months since the end of the first fiscal year, the agency must submit the copy of the 990 by the end of the sixth (6th) month after the end of the agency’s fiscal year.  

	3. For-profit agencies shall have a current Certificate of Good Standing from the Secretary of State’s office for the programs and/or services/supportsidentified in the application.
	4. If applicable, agencies must submit proof of good standing with regard to current licensure, certification, or accreditation from the appropriate Missouri and/or Federal authority having oversight responsibilities (i.e.  DESE, DMH, etc.).
	5. Agencies must be in good standing with regard to the successful implementation of previous services, programs, or projects funded by CCDDR.
	6. Agencies must submit a business plan or detailed description of the program(s), service(s), project(s), etc. for which funds are to be used.
	7. Agencies must submit a copy of their current strategic plan, Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation, financial management policy, financial management procedures, and other policies and procedures when submitting an application for the first time.
	8. Agencies shall provide other documents as deemed necessary by CCDDR Executive Director and/or the Board.

	B. The annual funding application requirements are as follows:
	1. Agencies shall demonstrate fiscal viability by submitting: 
	a. a current year-to-date detailed balance sheet; 
	b. current year-to-date detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue and expenses for each program administered by the agency; 
	c. current year-to-date detailed cash flow statement; 
	d. detailed budget for the next 12 consecutive months or fiscal year for each program administered by the agency; and
	e. the annual funding application.  

	2. Agencies that have been in operation for more than three (3) agency fiscal years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the documents requested in Subsection (1):
	a. the previous two agency fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheets; 
	b. detailed statements of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue and expenses for each program administered by the agency;
	c.  detailed cash flow statements; and
	d. third-party audit reports with the funding application.  

	3. Agencies that have been in operation for less than three (3) agency fiscal years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the documents requested in Subsection (1): 
	a. the agency’s previous fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheet: 
	b. detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue and expenses for each program administered by the agency; 
	c. detailed cash flow statement; and
	d. third-party audit report with the funding application.  

	4. Agencies that have been in operation for less than two (2) agency fiscal years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the documents requested in Publication (1):
	a. a copy of the previous fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheet; 
	b. detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue and expenses for each program administered by the agency; 
	c. detailed cash flow statement; and
	d. third-party audit report within six (6) months after the end of the agency’s previous fiscal year if the first fiscal year has not ended at the time of the funding application, if the agency’s first fiscal year has ended but it has not been six (6) months since the end of the first fiscal year, the agency must submit the third-party audit report by the end of the sixth (6th) month after the end of the agency’s fiscal year.


	C. The special funding application requirements are as follows:
	1. For new program, service, and/or support applications, agencies shall provide detailed information about the program, service, and/or support including, but not limited to:
	a. a business and/or strategic plan;
	b. projected budget;
	c. anticipated outcomes;
	d. summary of how CCDDR funds will be utilized in program or service development identified in the application; and
	e. current or past agency financial reports (if applicable).

	2. For operational shortfall, capital improvement, equipment purchase, new construction, renovation, vehicle acquisition, or health and safety related applications, agencies shall provide detailed information about the circumstances including, but not limited to:
	a. a business and/or strategic plan; 
	b. projected budget;
	c. anticipated outcomes;
	d.  summary of how CCDDR funds will be utilized; and
	e. current or past agency financial reports (if applicable).



	VII. Programs, Services, and/or Supports Eligible for Funding
	A. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR must utilize the funds for programs, services, and/or supports for Eligible Persons including, but not limited to the following:
	1. Sheltered employment programs, services, and/or supports;
	2. Community employment programs, services, and/or supports;
	3. Pre-vocational programs, services, and/or supports;
	4. Immediate care programs, services, and/or supports;
	5. Community inclusion programs, services, and/or supports;
	6. Residential programs, services, and/or supports; and
	7. “Related” programs, services, and/or supports defined as:
	a. Programs designed toward enabling an Eligible Person to progress toward normal living and/or to develop his or her capacity, performance, or relationships with other persons;
	b. Programs which provide services related to a place of residence or social centers for Eligible Persons; or
	c. Programs which provide a controlled environment.


	B. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR which fall within the area of “related” programs, services, and/or supports will be asked to show how the program, service, and/or support qualifies under the above definition.
	C. The Board shall, at its discretion, determine if the program, service, and/or support qualifies when evaluating all applications.

	VIII. Funding Categories
	A. Annual and Special Funding
	1. Grants
	a. CCDDR may award grants to sustain existing agency operations and/or to continue providing programs, services, and/or supports to Eligible Persons.  
	b. Grants may be utilized for direct operational costs, such as personnel, fringe benefits, supplies, travel, professional fees, etc. 
	c. A percentage of indirect/overhead costs may also be funded.  
	d. All funding will be based on program specific measures.

	2. POS Agreements
	a. POS Agreements with agencies shall provide direct services and/or supports for Eligible Persons during a specified period of time.  
	b. A “unit” of service and a “rate per unit” is determined and approved by the Board.  
	c. The agency then invoices CCDDR for the number of “units” provided by the agency.


	B. Special Funding
	1. New Programs
	a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants or POS Agreements for new programs.  
	b. Criteria to be used to review and evaluate all applications for new programs, services, and/or supports include, but is not limited to:
	i. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or support has been identified by CCDDR as a need based upon needs survey results, waiting list data, or other viable sources;
	ii. The extent to which other Federal, State, and local agencies or funding sources are mandated to fund the proposed new program, service, and/or support;
	iii. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or support will contribute to the advancement of and/or improvement of promoting Eligible Persons to progress toward normal living;
	iv. The availability of CCDDR revenues to sustain the new program, service, and/or support on an on-going basis;
	v. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or support falls within Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo in terms of eligible services to be funded;
	vi. The extent to which the estimated cost for the new program, service, and/or support is reasonable and is cost-effective;
	vii. The extent to which other available revenue sources have been investigated and accessed by the agency requesting CCDDR funds;
	viii. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or support addresses the needs of Eligible Persons;
	ix. The extent to which the agency is: certified or accredited by State and national bodies; program, service, or support personnel are well qualified by training and/or experience for their roles; and the applicant agency has adequate facilities and personnel;
	x. The extent to which, insofar as practicable, the proposed program, service, and/or support, if well executed, is capable of attaining the proposed outcomes and goals; 
	xi. The strength of the program, service, and/or support plan for evaluation in terms of meeting stated outcomes/goals; and
	xii. The agency’s historical performance in other programs, services, and/or supports funded by CCDDR (if applicable) or historical performance in other programs, services, and/or supports not funded by CCDDR (references may be requested).

	c. CCDDR will evaluate each one-time grant application as it relates to program feasibility or viability and its impact on Eligible Persons participating in the program.

	2. Construction/Renovation Projects & Purchases of Property
	a. All new construction projects and renovation projects require development of uniform specifications for the work to be done, adherence to this Policy, adherence to CCDDR Procurement Policy #31, adherence to the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law when applicable, and adherence to all applicable Federal, Missouri, and local laws.  
	b. The following information shall be submitted with the agency’s grant application when requesting funding for new construction, property purchase, or renovation projects:
	i. Description of the project and benefits to persons served;
	ii. Projected timeline for initiation and completion of project;
	iii. Business plan and how proposed property acquisition, construction, or renovation will enhance the agency’s business operations and/or mission in serving Eligible Persons;
	iv. Land site and value (for proposed purchases of property that CCDDR is to fund, an Independent Appraisal of the property from a certified appraiser is required);
	v. Architectural plans(if applicable); and
	vi. Itemized cost breakdown for the entire project.

	c. For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, constructed, or renovated exclusively with CCDDR funds, the Board reserves the right to retain ownership of the property and subsequently lease the property to the agency for a specific purpose, hold recorded interest in title to the property, or be recorded as the first lien-holder.  
	d. For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, constructed, or renovated which are partially funded by CCDDR funds, the Board reserves the right to hold recorded interest in title to the property or be recorded as a lien-holder.  
	e. Restricted covenants shall be recorded for the agency’s use of CCDDR funds to: purchase property; purchase, construct, or renovate buildings; or purchase, construct, or renovate of residential facilities.

	3. Vehicle Purchases
	a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants to enable agencies to:
	i. improve or replace their existing fleet of vehicles; 
	ii. purchase lift equipment or safety equipment, such as restraints; or 
	iii. to purchase new vehicles as part of an expansion of transportation services.  

	b. All vehicle purchases require adherence to this Policy, adherence to CCDDR Procurement Policy #31, applicable sections contained within CCDDR Transportation Policy #36 as outlined in the Funding Agreement, and adherence to all applicable Federal, Missouri, and local laws
	i. Agency purchases of vehicles at the State/Federal Surplus warehouse in Jefferson City or through the MoDOT Section 5309/5310/5311 program are not subject to the conditions outlined in CCDDR Procurement Policy #31.  

	c. For vehicles purchased entirely with CCDDR funds, the vehicle must be titled with CCDDR listed as first lien-holder, and CCDDR will physically hold title for the duration of the vehicle’s service.
	d. Agencies are required to provide CCDDR with vehicle serial numbers and other appropriate identifying information.
	e. The vehicle must be used in transporting Eligible Persons.  
	f. Agencies must submit a request in writing for CCDDR’s permission to dispose of, transfer, or sell a vehicle purchased with CCDDR funds.
	i. CCDDR reserves the authority to determine a reasonable sale price and shall use the wholesale value of the vehicle as specified in The Official Bus Blue Book by Bus Solutions, in consideration with straight-line depreciation methods.  
	ii. CCDDR reserves the right to retain proceeds from sales of vehicles purchased exclusively with CCDDR funds.
	iii. Where vehicles have been partially purchased with Federal or MoDOT funds (Section 5309/5310/5311), Federal or MoDOT property management standards shall prevail, with remittance of the sale price to the CCDDR equal to CCDDR’s percentage match (typically 20%).

	g. CCDDR will not provide funding to replace vehicles unless the odometer reading of the vehicle to be replaced is above 100,000 miles.

	4. Operational Shortfall
	a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants for program specific operational shortfalls, such as unanticipated expenses incurred as a result of changes in health and safety compliance standards, replacement or repairs of necessary equipment, or other unforeseen and uncontrollable circumstances affecting the successful operation of a program.  
	b. Operational shortfalls will be heavily scrutinized by the Board.  
	c. Mismanagement or management errors will not be considered legitimate reasons for one-time grant requests.

	5. Health and Safety
	a. CCDDR may provide one-time grants to an agency if the health and safety of an Eligible Person/Persons is/are threatened, and the agency is financially unable to accommodate a remedy to the health and safety issue.  
	b. Health and safety concerns will be heavily scrutinized by the Board.  
	c. If it has been determined mismanagement or management errors are the reason for the health and safety issue, additional investigatory authorities may be notified and continued funding of any other CCDDR funded agency program will be reviewed and reconsidered immediately.



	IX. Monitoring of Funds Utilization
	A. All agencies receiving annual funding from CCDDR for the on-going sustainment of programs, services, and/or supports shall provide a verifiable, detailed accounting of funds utilized as identified in the funding agreement(s).
	B. All agencies receiving special funding from CCDDR must submit copies of actual invoices and checks for payment of the invoices for approved expenditures.  
	C. For operational, operational shortfall, new program, and/or other special project or program funding, a verifiable, detailed accounting of how the funds were utilized is required.  
	D. If the agency requests CCDDR to make a direct payment to the supplier or manufacturer rather than being remunerated by CCDDR, an invoice from the supplier or manufacturer for all approved expenditures is needed.
	E. Purchase of Assets
	1. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets (equipment, furnishings, vehicles, property, etc.) in excess of $1,000 for items with a useful life of over 1 year shall complete an asset inventory report annually for the depreciable period applicable to the item following the award.
	2. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets shall maintain a loss control/risk management system to prevent damage or theft of such items.  
	3. Any damage or theft of an asset in excess of $1,000 purchased with CCDDR funds shall be properly investigated, with the appropriate reports/findings submitted for review to the Board.
	4. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets in excess of $1,000 shall maintain adequate property insurance coverage for said items, and shall furnish CCDDR with evidence of insurance annually for all such capital items.
	5. If purchased assets are found not to be used during a six-month consecutive period of time during the first three years of ownership, said items shall be made available to CCDDR for reassignment to another agency, to CCDDR for its own uses, or for resale by CCDDR, with proceeds returning to CCDDR.
	6. If purchased assets are found not to be used for or by Eligible Persons, the agency shall repay CCDDR the undepreciated or market value of said items or make the items available to CCDDR for reassignment to another agency.
	7. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of an asset in excess of $1,000 shall not sell, trade, or dispose of the item within a three-year period of time after the award unless prior approval has been obtained from CCDDR.  If prior approval is not obtained, the agency shall repay CCDDR for the funding amount used to purchase the asset.
	8. All purchased assets shall be depreciated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  The agency shall be expected to establish and fund a depreciation reserve account to replace the item when this becomes necessary.

	F. Purchase of Property
	1. If CCDDR grants funds for the purchase of real property and the agency sells, trades, or ceases to use the property for the purposes indicated in its original proposal and/or grant application within five years from the date of being awarded funds, all funds disbursed in the project shall be reimbursed to CCDDR.  
	a. If the agency continues to serve Eligible Persons, but uses the property for a different purpose than in the original proposal, a request must first be made in writing to the Board to utilize the property in a different manner.  
	b. If the request is denied, the agency shall repay CCDDR for the funding amount used to purchase the real property.

	2. For all purchases of personal property in excess of $5,000.00, the agency shall grant to CCDDR a security interest in the property.  
	a. CCDDR will execute a security agreement via UCC Financing Statement (UCC-1) with the Secretary of State’s office.  
	b. The security agreement shall be in effect for 10 years or until property is disposed of.



	X.  Monitoring Agencies Receiving Funds
	A. As a publicly-supported entity, CCDDR places a premium on the accountability of its funds.  This responsibility extends to those agencies funded by CCDDR.  
	B. Agencies will be required to provide CCDDR with a full financial disclosure of all operations.
	C. Agencies shall establish internal controls, systems, and procedures for monitoring the fiscal position of their agency and the use of CCDDR funds.
	D. Agencies’ financial management controls and record-keeping shall be in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
	E. All agencies that have funding agreements with CCDDR shall submit an organization-wide independent audit to CCDDR conducted by a Certified Public Accountant following Generally Accepted Auditing Standards for the period in which the funding was received.  
	1. If this funding extends into a subsequent fiscal year(s) for the agency, a subsequent audit(s) will be required.  
	2. The audit document shall include the auditor’s Management Report and comments on compliance with accounting standards and internal controls.  
	3. The audit is due in the CCDDR office within six (6) months of the close of the agency’s fiscal year.  
	4. The DESE Audit Analysis shall accompany the audit report for sheltered employment services.  
	5. Copies of audits by any regulatory entity must also be submitted to CCDDR within thirty (30) days of the agency’s receipt of the completed audit report from the regulatory entity.
	6. Agencies receiving $10,000 or less annually or in a single, program specific grant which carries no ongoing funding obligation by CCDDR may request an exception to the audit requirement.  
	i. This audit exception request must be submitted to CCDDR in writing with the grant application.  
	ii. Each audit exception request will be considered on a case-by-case basis, and each consideration will be made based on the funding application circumstances.
	iii. If a waiver is granted, the exempted agency shall submit year-end financial statements or program specific financial statements signed by their board treasurer, Certified Public Accountant, or authorized designee.  


	F. Any modifications or changes to the strategic plan, Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation, policies, and procedures adopted by the agency during the term identified in the funding agreement must be submitted to CCDDR.
	G. Agencies will be required to comply with all terms and conditions set forth in the funding agreement(s).
	H.  CCDDR reserves the right to conduct periodic site visits of funded programs, services, and/or supports.  
	I. CCDDR may, at its own costs, procure the services of third parties to conduct assessments, audits, inspections, etc. of programs, services, supports, and/or facilities funded by CCDDR funds.


	Resolution 2016-45
	Resolution 2016-45 Attachment A
	Resolution 2016-46
	Resolution 2016-46 Attachment A
	Resolution 2016-47
	Resolution 2016-47 Attachment A

